
 
 

 

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning. 

 

 

 

June 14, 2022 
 
 

Regular Board Meeting 
Package 

 

 

VIRTUAL MEETING  
 

 
 



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING # 7 
 

THE KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD PUTS STUDENTS FIRST BY CREATING A CULTURE OF LEARNING. 
 

Tuesday, June 14, 2022 
Time: 7:00 pm CST 

Virtual Meeting 
(Google Link for internal use only) 

AGENDA 
 

1.  Call to Order Chair 
 

2.  Roll Call 
 
Observers may participate by submitting questions regarding the 
agenda items presented at the meeting this evening to the 
following email address ‘questions@kpdsb.ca’.  Questions will be 
responded to under the agenda item, Observer Comments.  
 

Exec Asst 
 

Chair 

3.  Approval of Agenda for June 14, 2022 ∆ Chair 
 

4.  Declaration of Conflict of Interest Chair 
 

5.  Business Arising from Committee of the Whole  
 

Chair 
 

6.  Confirmation of Minutes  
6.01 – Regular Board Meeting May 10, 2022 ∆ 
6.02 – Special Board Meeting May 24, 2022 ∆ 
 

Chair 
 
 

7.  Presentations/Delegations  Chair 
 

8.  Presentation of Reports and Accompanying Motions  Chair 
 

8.01 Education  
 A. Students Come First – NPPS ∆ 
 B. Experiential Learning Update ∆ 
 C. #306 Policy – Use of Volunteers ∆ 

      D. #329 Policy - Progressive Discipline and Promoting a Positive  
                                 School Climate ∆ 
      E. #321 Policy – Safe and Supportive Schools ∆ 
      F. #617 Policy – Honorarium to Support Students ∆ 

 

 
C. Moore 
J. Lower 
S. Bailey 
C. Moore 

 
C. Moore 
S. Bailey 

 
8.02 Executive Committee Report 

A. Student Trustees’ Reports 
B. 2019-24 Strategic Plan Update ∆ 
C. Special Education Plan ∆ 
D. School Council Year-End Reports ∆ 
E. #207 Policy – Trustee Code of Conduct ∆ 
F. Trustee Information  

 

M. Shakakeesic / 
M. Gallagher 
SL. Pharand 

C. Moore 
J. Lower 

SL. Pharand 
M. Guitard 

8.03 Finance / Audit  
        A. Draft 2022-23 Budget Estimates ∆ 
        B. #806 Policy – Joint School Capital Projects ∆ 

 
R. Findlay 
R. Findlay   



Keewatin-Patricia District School Board  
Regular Board Meeting  

June 14, 2022 
 

THE KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD PUTS STUDENTS FIRST BY CREATING A CULTURE OF LEARNING. 

 

  ∆ indicates an attachment included in the meeting package 

8.04 Human Resources  
        A. 2021-22 Employee Recognition Report ∆ 
 

J. Bullock/ 
SL. Pharand 

 
8.05 Operations  
        A. #805 Policy – Naming of Education Facilities ∆ 
        B. #807 Policy – Community Planning and Partnerships ∆ 
        C. Record Information Management System Update ∆ 

   D. Suspension Report ∆ 
 

 
R. Findlay 
R. Findlay 
D. Farion 
C. Moore 

8.06 Committee Updates 
A. Early Years Advisory Committee  
B. Audit and Finance Committee  
C. Indigenous Education Advisory Committee  
D. Ontario Public School Boards’ Association  
E. Parent Involvement Committee  
F. Special Education Advisory Committee  
G. Supervised Alternative Learning – NIL  
 

 
S. Bailey  

R. Findlay 
SL. Pharand 

G. Kleist 
J. Lower 

C. Moore 
 

9.  Correspondence 
 

 

10.  New Business and Notices of Motion 
 

 

11.  Observer Comments 
 

 

12.  Next Meeting Date:  September 13, 2022 
 

Chair 

13.  Adjournment 
 

Chair 



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING #5 

THE KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD PUTS STUDENTS FIRST BY CREATING A CULTURE OF LEARNING. 

 

The minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of the Keewatin-Patricia District School 
Board Tuesday, May 10, 2022, held via virtual meeting.  
 
Call to Order The meeting was called to order at 7:00 pm. 

 
Roll Call  
 
 
 
 
 

E. Bortlis M. Duncalfe B. Gauthier 
D. Head R. Griffiths  M. Guitard 
D. Cornish R. O’Donohue C. Marcino 
J. Kitowski G. Kleist  
M. Gallagher, ST M. Shakakeesic, IST 

Absent with Regret 
 

   

Absent without Regret 
 

   

Officials 
 
 

SL. Pharand R. Findlay S. Bailey 
J. Lower C. Moore S. Pilipishen  
Exec Assistant 
 

  

Also Present 
 

Media, Staff, and the Interested Public 

Item 3 - Agenda 
 
Motion 112-22 
 
 
 

Moved by: Gerald Kleist  
Seconded by: Robert O’Donohue 
THAT the agenda for the Regular Board Meeting of May 10, 
2022, be approved. 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   .       

Conflict of Interest There was one Conflict of Interest declared by Trustee 
Guitard with respect to item 8.01G.  
 

Item 6 - Minutes 
 
Motion 113-22 
 
 
 

Moved by: Marilyn Duncalfe 
Seconded by: Michelle Guitard 
THAT the minutes of April 12, 2022, Regular Board Meeting, 
having been duly circulated, be confirmed.   
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   .   

Item 7.01 – NEW STs 
 
Motion 114-22 
 

Moved by: Barbara Gauthier 
Seconded by: Jennifer Kitowski  
THAT the presentation of the new Student Trustees for the 
2022-2023 School Year staff be received.    
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
   
 



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING  

MAY 10, 2022 

THE KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD PUTS STUDENTS FIRST BY CREATING A CULTURE OF LEARNING.  
 

Chair Marcino introduced and welcomed D. McDonald and G. Tucker as the Student 
Trustees for the 2022-20223 School Year.  
 
Item 7.01 – NEW STs 
 
Motion 115-22 
 

Moved by: Jennifer Kitowski 
Seconded by: Eric Bortlis 
THAT Dakota McDonald from Dryden High School be 
appointed as Student Trustee; and  
THAT Gracie Tucker from Ignace High School be appointed 
as Indigenous Student Trustee for the 2022-23 school year.     
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
   

Item 7.02 – HR Staff 
 
Motion 116-22 
 

Moved by: David Cornish 
Seconded by: Darrin Head  
THAT the presentation of new Human Resources staff be 
received.    

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
   

Human Resources Manager, J. Bullock, introduced and welcomed new Human 
Resources Officers Sarah Egli and Kelsey Wellwood to KPDSB.  
 
Item 8.01A – S.C.F.  
 
Motion 117-22 
 
 
 

Moved by: Gerlad Kleist 
Seconded by: Michelle Guitard  
THAT the Students Come First Presentation be received.  

 
Defeated _____     Carried    X   .  

      
Students Come First Presentation “Student Agency, Social Issues Competencies for 
Today and Tomorrow” was presented by Golden Learning Centre Public School 
Principal M. Parrish, K. Fawthrop (Gr. 6/7 Teacher), and JM. Ramsaywak (Gr. 7/8 
Teacher), and students Victoria, Max, and Aspen.  
 
Item 8.01B – NAN/KPDSB 
                          / RRNST 
 
Motion 118-22 
 
 
 

Moved by: Barbara Gauthier  
Seconded by: Marilyn Duncalfe  
THAT the Nishnawbe Aski Nation/Keewatin-Patricia District 
School Board School Support Program and Rapid 
Response Northern School Team report received.  
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   .  
      

Item 8.01C – OHRC R2R 
 
Motion 119-22 
 
 
 

Moved by: David Cornish 
Seconded by: Roger Griffiths 
THAT the Ontario Human Rights Code Right to Read 
Summary Recommendations report be received.     
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING  

MAY 10, 2022 

THE KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD PUTS STUDENTS FIRST BY CREATING A CULTURE OF LEARNING.  
 

Item 8.01D – Success 
 
Motion 120-22 
 
 
 

Moved by: Jennifer Kitowski 
Seconded by: Robert O’Donohue 
THAT the KPDSB Expanded Program – Student Success 
report be received.    
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       

Item 8.02E – SEAC S-R 
 
Motion 121-22 
 
 

Moved by: Eric Bortlis 
Seconded by: Darrin Head  
THAT the Special Education Advisory Committee Self-
Regulation presentation be received.   
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
 

Trustee Cornish left the meeting at 8:30pm. 
 
Item 8.01F – Mental Health  
 
Motion 122-22 
 
 
 

Moved by: Michelle Guitard 
Seconded by: Roger Griffiths 
THAT the Children’s Mental Health report be received.    
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       

Trustee Guitard was excused from the meeting. 
 
Item 8.01G – #311 
 
Motion 123-22 
 
 

Moved by: Marilyn Duncalfe 
Seconded by: Gerald Kleist  
THAT Policy 311 – School Scholarships and Awards be 
received.   

Defeated _____     Carried    X   .  
      

Item 8.01G – #311 
 
Motion 124-22 
 
 

Moved by: Roger Griffiths 
Seconded by: Robert O’Donohue  
THAT Policy 311 – School Scholarships and Awards be 
approved.   

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       

Trustee Guitard rejoined the meeting. 
 
Item 8.01H – #323 
 
Motion 125-22 
 
 
 
 
 

Moved by: Michelle Guitard 
Seconded by: Roger Griffiths 
THAT Policy 323 – Student Use of Service Animals be 
received.   

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING  

MAY 10, 2022 

THE KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD PUTS STUDENTS FIRST BY CREATING A CULTURE OF LEARNING.  
 

Item 8.01H – #323 
 
Motion 126-22 
 
 

Moved by: Eric Bortlis  
Seconded by: Roger Griffiths  
THAT Policy 323 – Student Use of Service Animals be 
approved.   

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       

Item 8.02A – S. Trustees 
 
Motion 127-22 
 
 
 

Moved by: Darrin Head  
Seconded by: Jennifer Kitowski  
THAT the Student Trustees’ written reports be received. 
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
 

Item 8.02B – Mtg Date 
 
Motion 128-22 
 
 

Moved by: Gerald Kleist  
Seconded by: Darrin Head  
THAT the June Board Meeting Date verbal update be 
received.   

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       

Item 8.02B – Mtg Date 
 
Motion 129-22 
 
 

Moved by: Jennifer Kitowski  
Seconded by: Robert O’Donohue 
THAT the Regular Board Meeting scheduled for June 7, 
2022, be changed to June 14, 2022.    
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       

Item 8.02C – #209 
 
Motion 130-22 
 
 

Moved by: Gerald Kleist 
Seconded by: Robert O’Donohue  
THAT Policy 209 – Trustee Professional Development be 
received.   

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       

Item 8.02C – #209 
 
Motion 131-22 
 
 

Moved by: Roger Griffiths 
Seconded by: Robert O’Donohue 
THAT Policy 209 – Trustee Professional Development be 
approved.   

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
 

Item 8.05A – #201 
 
Motion 132-22 
 
 

Moved by: Barbara Gauthier 
Seconded by: Jennifer Kitowski 
THAT Policy 201 – Policy Initiation, Identification, 
Development, Implementation, and Review be received.   
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       
 
 



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING  

MAY 10, 2022 

THE KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD PUTS STUDENTS FIRST BY CREATING A CULTURE OF LEARNING.  
 

Item 8.05A – #201 
 
Motion 133-22 
 
 

Moved by: Michelle Guitard 
Seconded by: Jennifer Kitowski  
THAT Policy 201 – Policy Initiation, Identification, 
Development, Implementation, and Review be approved.   
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       

Item 8.05B – #604 
 
Motion 134-22 
 
 

Moved by: Barbara Gauthier 
Seconded by: Robert O’Donohue 
THAT Policy 604 – OMERS Membership be received.   
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       

Item 8.05B – #604 
 
Motion 135-22 
 
 

Moved by: Darrin Head  
Seconded by: Roger Griffiths 
THAT Policy 604 – OMERS Membership be approved.   
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       

Item 8.05C – #606 
 
Motion 136-22 
 
 

Moved by: Eric Bortlis 
Seconded by: Roger Griffiths 
THAT Policy 606 – Transportation be received.   
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       

Item 8.05C – #606 
 
Motion 137-22 
 
 
 

Moved by: Marilyn Duncalfe 
Seconded by: Gerald Kleist  
THAT Policy 606 – Transportation be approved.   
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 

Item 8.06A – A&F 
 
Motion 138-22 
 
 

Moved by: Barbara Gauthier  
Seconded by: Marilyn Duncalfe 
THAT the Audit and Finance Committees updates be 
received.  

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
 

Item 8.06C – IEAC 
 
Motion 139-22 
 

Moved by: Darrin Head 
Seconded by:  Jennifer Kitowski  
THAT the Indigenous Education Advisory Committee update 
be received.  
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
 
 
 



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING  

MAY 10, 2022 

THE KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD PUTS STUDENTS FIRST BY CREATING A CULTURE OF LEARNING.  
 

Item 8.06D – OPSBA 
 
Motion 140-22 
 

Moved by: Jennifer Kitowski  
Seconded by:  Barbara Gauthier  
THAT the Ontario Public School Board Association update 
be received.  

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
 

Item 8.06F – SEAC 
 
Motion 141-22 
 
 

Moved by: Michelle Guitard 
Seconded by: Marilyn Duncalfe  
THAT the Special Education Advisory Committee update be 
received. 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
 

Correspondence 
 

NONE 

New Business and 
Notice of Motions 
 

NONE 

Observer Comments Observers may participate by submitting questions 
regarding the agenda items presented at the meeting this 
evening, to the following email address 
‘questions@kpdsb.ca’.  Questions will be responded to 
under the agenda item, Observer Comments.  
 

Next Meeting Date 
 

Tuesday, June 14, 2022. 
 

Item 13 - Adjournment 
 
Motion 142-22 
 
 
 

Moved by: Roger Griffiths  
Seconded by: Jennifer Kitowski 
THAT the meeting adjourn at 9:31 pm.  
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X  .       

 
 
 

____________________________________ 
Date                                    Chair, C. Marcino  

 
 
 

____________________________________ 
Date                          Secretary, SL. Pharand  

 



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING #2 

THE KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD PUTS STUDENTS FIRST BY CREATING A CULTURE OF LEARNING. 

 

The minutes of the SPECIAL Board Meeting of the Keewatin-Patricia District School 
Board Tuesday, May 24, 2022, held at Lillian Berg Public School, Vermilion Bay.  
 
Call to Order The meeting was called to order at 9:30pm. 

 
Roll Call  
 
 
 
 

E. Bortlis M. Duncalfe B. Gauthier 
G. Kleist R. Griffiths  M. Guitard 
D. Cornish R. O’Donohue C. Marcino 
D. Head   
  

Absent with Regret 
 

M. Gallager, ST M. Shakakeesic, IST 

Absent without Regret 
 

J. Kitowski   

Officials 
 
 

SL. Pharand R. Findlay S. Pilipishen 
J. Lower C. Moore Exec Assistant 
   

Also Present 
 

Media, Staff, and the Interested Public 

Item 3 - Agenda 
 
Motion 143-22 
 
 
 
 

Moved by: Cecile Marcino 
Seconded by: Barbara Gauthier 
THAT the agenda for the Special Board Meeting of May 24, 
2022, be approved.  
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   .       

Conflict of Interest Declaration of conflict of interest regarding proceedings on 
agenda  
 

Item 5 – Property Matter 
 
Motion 144-22 
 
 
 
 

Moved by: Robert O’Donohue 
Seconded by: Gerald Kleist 
THAT the Property Matter report be received.    

 
Defeated _____     Carried    X   .       

Item 5– Property Matter 
 
Motion 145-22 
 
 
 

Moved by: Marilyn Duncalfe 
Seconded by: Darrin Head 
THAT motion number 6-22, of the May 24th, 2022, 
Committee of the Whole In-Camera Meeting be approved. 

 
Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 

       



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING  

May 24, 2022 

THE KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD PUTS STUDENTS FIRST BY CREATING A CULTURE OF LEARNING.  
 

Item 6 - Adjournment 
 
Motion 146-22 
 
 
 

Moved by: Robert O’Donohue 
Seconded by: Eric Bortlis 
THAT the meeting adjourn at 9:32 pm.  
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X  .       

 
 
 

____________________________________ 
Date                          Acting Chair, R. Griffiths  

 
 
 

____________________________________ 
Date                          Secretary, SL. Pharand  



All stakeholders create a culture of learning so that students come first.The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.
The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.



All stakeholders create a culture of learning so that students come first.The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

Using the Engineering Design 
Process to Involve Students in 

Their Learning

Students Come First 

Respectfully submitted by, Theresa Lambert-

Grade 4-5 teacher – New Prospect School 

Students Come First Presentation

New Prospect Public School

June 14, 2022



All stakeholders create a culture of learning so that students come first.The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

Why Do Students Love STEM? ( video #1)

Hands on Learning Learning Math Through Experiences



All stakeholders create a culture of learning so that students come first.The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

Step #1-
What Is the Problem That Needs to Be Solved? 

Problem #1-

Students are complaining that there is nothing to do outside.

Problem #2-

Students are arguing over who can use the soccer nets each recess.

Solution:  Teach students that they can build their own outdoor fun. Host 
a school wide mini putt day and charge $2 to raise money for more 
outdoor soccer nets.  (June 9th, 2022)



All stakeholders create a culture of learning so that students come first.The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

Step 2/3 – Draw, Create and Collaborate

Students drew an irregular polygon, 
calculated the perimeter and began to 
construct one hole of the mini-putt course.

Moving from a design plan to 
construction.



All stakeholders create a culture of learning so that students come first.The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

Learning How to Use Various Tools Safely 
Making the Connection To The Trades 

Removing Gender & Cultural Stereotypes

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.



All stakeholders create a culture of learning so that students come first.The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

Cross Curricular Connections- Math, Reading, Media 
Literacy, Writing, Science, and Gym



All stakeholders create a culture of learning so that students come first.The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

Research to Inform the Principal For the 
Purchase 

Advertising To Inform the School- (video #2)

Problem Solving- Which Soccer Net is 
the Best One to Purchase?

Learning to Use Google Drawings to 
Advertise 



All stakeholders create a culture of learning so that students come first.The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.



Group names:   ______________________________________________________

REAL LIFE PROBLEM THAT NEEDS TO BE SOLVED

The students are complaining there is not enough to do outside. What can we design for students to have some fun, as well as raise money for 2 new soccer nets for

outdoor recess?

STEM DESIGN TASK:

In your group of 3 design 1 portable mini-put hole of a 9 hole mini putt course using the materials and the criteria provided. The hole must have:

a beginning- where the ball starts and an ending point( a hole that the ball must get into)
an enclosed ending hole so that the ping ball ball can’t roll out of the hole
a perimeter of at least 400 cm- your diagram must match your construction in shape and perimeter
know the name of at least 2 different angles within your course
the parr stated and data to show how the parr was decided upon
a flag to show what hole number your hole is
at least 2 different 3D shapes are to be used  in the design of your course
at least 2  different types of obstacles in the course to challenge the golfer- one of the obstacles types will be given to you
use at least 4 different types of materials and learn the name of the material and where it is used in real life
your labellled design plan beside the hole ( the perimeter- with math shown as well as type of polygon and how many sides)
at each angle there should be a ricochet item to help the ball not get stuck in angled corners
** golfers will use a ping pong ball and a putter or a mini hockey stick if the putters are too big for a student
specific rules for your hole to let the golfer know what to do

TYPES OF OBSTACLES- * see chart paper for examples

➢ up a ramp/over a bridge
➢ through a hole or  tunnel
➢ swinging obstacles
➢ choice of holes within 1 object
➢ sand hole
➢ water hole
➢ through multiple objects set up
➢ ricochet angles
➢ coil or maze
➢ bumpy hill
➢ multiple holes

Step #1- PLAN OUT YOUR MINI PUTT HOLE:

In your group look at all of the materials provided, (or come up with materials that you want to use that are not in the classroom), read over the
criteria, look at the types of obstacles on chart paper, study the 3D shapes and irregular polygon shapes you could use, and begin to draw
out your mini putt hole on a whiteboard.

Ask the group-
What type of regular polygon or irregular polygon shape do you want the hole to be? How many sides will it have? What is the
name of the shape? What will be the perimeter of the shape?
What are 2 different obstacles you can use in your hole? What materials can you use?
How can you incorporate at least 2- 3D shapes into your hole? What materials would be those shapes?
What will the end hole be? What materials will you need?
What will you build a stable flag hole number out of?
Have you used at least 4 different materials?
How will you store the materials for your hole so that it is portable?
What tools will you need to learn to use and what are the safety rules?

Step #2- PLAN OUT YOUR MINI PUTT HOLE:  BEGIN TO BUILD AND REVISE- collect qualitative data

Do you need to make any changes to your design plan? Write down what the changes are and why you need to change them.



Step #3- COLLECT DATA TO DETERMINE THE PARR and ENSURE THERE ARE NO ISSUES WITH YOUR MINI PUTT HOLE
Record each group members prediction as to what they think the parr data will be
Using a google doc set up a chart to organize and collect your parr data.
Can you describe if the data you are collecting is qualitative or quantatative?
Calculate the mode and median of your data. ( show the math)
How will you display the data so the golfer knows the parr? Be sure to use probability language “likely” when displaying the parr
Is the parr reasonable or do you need to revise your course if it is too easy or too difficult?
Write out the sequence CODE of how you can reach the parr by using precise language and mathematical language

Step #4- GATHER FEEDBACK FROM ANOTHER GROUP then REVISE as needed
Have another group give you feedback - record their thoughts.

Step #5- Cost of new soccer nets- show the work on chart paper and submit
Calculate how much money could be made if every student in each class paid $2 to play the course
Research how much 2 new soccer nets would cost from 2 different places. Would we raise enough money if ½ the school
paid to play the course? How many people would need to play the course for us to purchase the 2 nets?



Curriculum Expectations:

Data
★ Describe the

difference
between
qualitative and
quantitative
data

★ Collect data
from primary
source and
dislay in a
table

★ Determine the
mode and the
median of data

★ Make and test
predictions
about the
likelihood of
mean and
mode data for
different
groups

★ Use math
language
likely, very
likely,,, to
describe
events
happening and
to make
informed
decisions

Number
★ Round

decimals to
the nearest
10th

★ Round whole
numbers to
the nearest
10- 100

★ Solve
problems
involving
add/subtractio
n of whole
numbers and
of decimals to
the 10th

Spatial
★ Use metric

prefixes to
describe
the size of
different
metric units
and use
appropriate
units to
measure
length and
width

★ Identify
angles-
right-
straight-
acute- and
obtuse

★ Calculate
ad compare
perimeter of
various
polygons

★ Construct
identify
cubes,
prisms,
pyramidsm
cyiinnders,
and cones
by
comparing
edges,
vertices and
angles

Algebra
★ Create

computational
representations
by writing code

Financial
Literacy
★ estimate

and
calculate the
cost  of
transactions
involving
multiple
items priced
in
whole-dollar
amounts,
not including
sales tax,
and the
amount  of
change
needed
when
payment  is
made in
cash,

Science- Forces
Acting on Structures
★ Follow

established
safety procedures
working with tools
and materials

★ Use technological
problem solving
skills to design,
build and test a
structure that will
withstand the
application of an
external force

★ Evaluate the
impact of society
and the
environmental on
structures such
as a golf course
taking different
perspectives into
account and
suggest ways in
which the course
could be modified
to best achieve
social and
environmental
objectives

Gym
★ Active Living- demonstrate

behaviours that maximize their
safety and that of others during
physical activity

★ Movement and Competence Skills-
send and receive objects of a
variety of shapes at different levels
and speeds

-identify common features of specific
categories of physical activities ( and
identify common strategies  and tactics that
they found effective  while participating.

Writing

★ Purpose and Audience - identify the
topic, purpose, and audience for a
variety of writing forms ( gathering
data and recording all revisions )

Media
★ identify an appropriate form to suit

the specific purpose and audience for
a media text they plan to create (e.g.,
a poster advertising the school wide
mini-putt course

Oral Language

★ use speaking and listening skills
and strategies appropriately to
communicate with different
audiences for a variety of
purposes;

★ reflect on and identify their
strengths as listeners and
speakers, areas for improvement,
and the strategies they found
most helpful in oral
communication situations.



Regular Board Meeting  
June 14, 2022 

 
 

 
 

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning. 

 

KPDSB Experiential Learning 2021-22 

Experiential learning (EL) is hands-on learning that occurs in person or virtually and provides 
developmentally appropriate opportunities for students of all ages to participate in rich 
experiences connected to the world outside of the school, reflect on the experiences to drive 
meaning, and apply the learning to their decisions and actions (Experiential Learning Cycle). 

Experiential Learning opportunities allow students to see the relevance of their classroom learning 
and its connection to the broader world. They also help them develop transferable and 
interpersonal skills and work habits that prepare them for their future and enable them to explore 
careers of interest as they plan their pathway through school to their postsecondary destination, 
whether in apprenticeship training, college, community living, university, or the workplace. 

Traditionally, Experiential Learning is looked at through the lens of skilled trades, Ontario Youth 
Apprenticeship Program (OYAP), Specialist High Skills Major (SHSM), and Co-operative 
Education (Co-op), all of which provide students with opportunities, skills, and engagement that 
help make learning “stick”.  In the 2021-22 school year, Experiential Learning at KPDSB was also 
explored through the lens of Indigenous Education, which is inherently experiential, through 
outdoor and land-based learning opportunities.  Land-based learning benefits Indigenous and 
non-Indigenous students alike.  Experiences in land-based learning are rooted in relationships 
and community-based learning, moving from engagement for learning to empowerment from 
learning for students. 

Project-based learning was at the center of Experiential Learning at KPDSB. Projects ranged from 
career exploration to curriculum-centred learning to community-based connections. These 
projects covered a range of areas including, but not limited to: 
 

● Learning about special effects and theatrical make-up; 
● Experiential Literacy through outdoor cooking; 
● Harvesting wild animals with knowledge keepers; 
● Connecting with local community partners to create a community garden; and 
● Forestry and tree planting exploration with community partners. 

Projects were rooted in experience and connecting with the community. Students left each of 
these experiences with additional positive adults in their growing networks.  Research shows the 
importance of expanding students’ networks, as it contributes to the likelihood of them gaining 
meaningful employment after graduation. 

The KPDSB Experiential Learning projects supported both new and experienced educators alike.  
Supports were provided to educators who were interested in adding experiential learning to their 
classroom practice.  Learning conversations and networking with others was a way for KPDSB 
teachers to share ideas, experiences, and resources.   

 

 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1822XHAe7iah5hkqDr6cksHRsRJwplhOz/view?usp=sharing


Experiential Learning 
June 14, 2022 

 
 
 

 
 
 

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning. 

 

Impact on Learning 

Experiential Learning creates opportunities for learning that “sticks”.  Academic rigor remains a 
pillar in Experiential Learning work.  Experiential Learning at KPDSB is not based on one-off field 
trips or experiences but rather is focused on using the Experiential Learning Cycle which provides 
students with the opportunity to reflect and apply their new knowledge.  Reflection allows students 
to “think about their thinking” or use metacognition. This often leads to richer learning and results 
in higher student achievement. 

Students document their learning during these Experiential Learning opportunities, through 
photos, voice memos, videos, and writing.  Before and after these experiences students reflect 
and apply what they have learned and lean on their observations/learning to create final products 
and to support assessment conversations. 

Although Experiential Learning pedagogies are new for some educators and classes, other 
educators within the KPDSB have been using Experiential Learning as a cornerstone of their 
programs for years.  Teachers invite community partners into the classrooms or take their learning 
outdoors and within the community. Students learn from community experts, elders, and 
knowledge keepers while boosting academic engagement and success for students.  

 

Next Steps/Next Year 

Through relationship building, instructional coaching, at-the-elbow support, and sharing of best 
practices, KPDSB schools will continue to see an increase in experiential learning.  This exciting 
work benefits student academic outcomes and strengthens educator pedagogies. KPDSB is 
continuing with this work with a focus on engagement for learning, leading to empowerment from 
learning, through land-based, outdoor, and experiential learning. We look forward to continued 
success in this area of learning for KPDSB. 

 

 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by: 
Sarah Caldwell-Bennett, KPDSB Leader of Experiential Learning 

Jane Lower, Superintendent of Education 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1822XHAe7iah5hkqDr6cksHRsRJwplhOz/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1822XHAe7iah5hkqDr6cksHRsRJwplhOz/view?usp=sharing


All stakeholders create a culture of learning so that students come first.The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.
The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.



All stakeholders create a culture of learning so that students come first.The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

Experiential Learning 

2021/2022

Respectfully submitted by,

Shannon Bailey, Jane Lower, & Chantal Moore

Regular Board Meeting

June 14, 2022



All stakeholders create a culture of learning so that students come first.The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

Agenda

1. Experiential Learning
2. Project-based Learning
3. Impact on Learning 
4. EL Project Highlights
5. Next Steps/Next Year

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.



All stakeholders create a culture of learning so that students come first.The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

What is Experiential Learning?

Experiential learning is hands-on learning that occurs in 

person or virtually and provides developmentally 

appropriate opportunities for students of all ages to:

● participate in rich experiences connected to the world 

outside the school;

● reflect on the experiences to derive meaning; and

● apply the learning to their decisions and actions.

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.



All stakeholders create a culture of learning so that students come first.The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

Experiential Learning at KPDSB

Experiential learning can be explored through:

• Co-operative Education (Co-op)

• Ontario Youth Apprenticeship Program (OYAP)

• Specialist High Skills Major (SHSM)

• Outdoor Education

• Land-based Learning

• Community-based learning

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.



All stakeholders create a culture of learning so that students come first.The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.



All stakeholders create a culture of learning so that students come first.The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

Project-Based Learning

These projects covered a range of areas including, but not 
limited to:

● Learning about special effects and theatrical make-up
● Experiential Literacy through outdoor cooking
● Harvesting wild animals with knowledge keepers
● Connecting with local community partners to create a 

community garden
● Forestry and tree planting exploration with community 

partners
● Dog sledding & Ice Fishing, while learning about Northern 

Tourism

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.



All stakeholders create a culture of learning so that students come first.The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.



All stakeholders create a culture of learning so that students come first.The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

Outdoor Learning/Education

● Supporting educators through training and certifications 

(ORCKA, Paddle Canada, Wilderness First Aid)

● Outdoor learning beyond high school Outdoor Ed, with a 

focus on assessment and good pedagogical practices

● The outdoors provided an opportunity for physical and 

mental well-being, including allowing teachers to have 

flexible seating for collaborative student inquiries, as 

well as engage in observation and discussion for 

assessment.

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.



All stakeholders create a culture of learning so that students come first.The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

Grade 9 Geography

“This is the 

first plant that 

I’ve ever had”

“I’ve never 

planted 

anything 

before.”



All stakeholders create a culture of learning so that students come first.The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

Land-based Learning

● KPDSB educators are growing their understanding of 

Land-based Learning

● Nishnawbe Aski Nation (NAN) Land-based Gathering 

(May 2022)

● New Teachers Induction Program sessions

● Community connections with local elders and 

knowledge keepers, as well as organizations like the 

Friendship Centers, Kenora CA, Seven Generations

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.



All stakeholders create a culture of learning so that students come first.The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

Grade 11/12 Anishinaabemowin

“I have never 

seen that student 

speak before” -

Teacher

“It was an odd thing to do at 
school but I enjoyed it. And I 
feel it was a very good learning 
experience for others that may 
have not done it before.” -
Student

“I enjoyed cutting up 
deer. I would like to do 
it again. It was not out 
of my comfort zone.” -
Student



All stakeholders create a culture of learning so that students come first.The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

Example: Experiential Literacy

● Jenn Ross, grade 6, Valleyview School (Language Arts -

Writing)

● Co-planning and co-teaching, building off work they 

were already doing, while challenging them to take a 

step in a new direction.

● Their task began with descriptive writing and moved in 

comparison writing

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.



All stakeholders create a culture of learning so that students come first.The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

Before



All stakeholders create a culture of learning so that students come first.The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

During - Co-Planning & Teaching

● Students were well versed in their learning goals for 

the activity

● Students had created ways to document their learning 

during the experience.

● Students were clear in their roles and responsibilities 

for their learning, including how to stay safe.

● Teacher was documenting learning through 

observations and discussions based on clear success 

criteria.

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.



All stakeholders create a culture of learning so that students come first.The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

After



All stakeholders create a culture of learning so that students come first.The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

Grade 6 Language Arts

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

“That we needed to be responsible 

in order to do those things. When 

we used the graphic organizer it 

helped me write the 5 paragraphs.”

“One important thing that I learned 

while cooking and the literacy was that 

it is important to describe writing and 

that it is fun to try new things like 

sandwiches! It is good to have an 

experience! “

“That writing can be fun.”



All stakeholders create a culture of learning so that students come first.The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

Impact on Learning

● Experiential Learning creates opportunities for 

learning that “sticks”.

● Academic rigor remains a pillar of this work.

● Both student and teacher documentation play an 

important role as learning is focused participating, 

reflecting, and applying their learning later on.

● This is not an add-on; it’s integrated in our practice.

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.



All stakeholders create a culture of learning so that students come first.The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

Experiential Learning is rooted in 
relationship and community-based 

learning, moving from 
engagement for learning

to 
empowerment from learning

for students.



All stakeholders create a culture of learning so that students come first.The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

Alternative Education

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.



All stakeholders create a culture of learning so that students come first.The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

Next Steps

● This exciting work benefits student academic 

outcomes and strengthens educator pedagogies.

● KPDSB is continuing with this work with a focus on 

engagement for learning, leading to empowerment 

from learning, through land-based, outdoor and 

experiential learning. 

● We look forward to continued success in this area of 

learning for KPDSB.

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.



All stakeholders create a culture of learning so that students come first.The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

Migweech! Thank you! 
Merci!



 

 
Policy Section:  School Administration  
 
Policy Name:  Use of Volunteers 

 

 

300 
BOARD June 14, 

2022 
306 

 

 
Cross Reference 
Policies: 
307, Use of Privately Owned Vehicles 
332, Accessibility Standards or Customer Service 
501, School Councils Parent Involvement Committee 
701, Criminal Background Checks 
706, Employee Code of Conduct 
715, Substance Use by Employees and Volunteers 
716, Use of Medical Cannabis 
Procedures: 
401, School – Student Activities Outside of the Classroom  

Date Adopted: 09/11/1999 
Dates Reviewed: 11/02/2003; 13/06/2006; 

11/02/2014; 13/06/2017; 18/05/2022 
 

Review By: 20260 

 
Page 1 of 2 
 

Policy Statement 
 
 
It is the policy of the Keewatin-Patricia District School Board that the use of school 
volunteers is supported and encouraged.   
 
Rationale 
 
 
Volunteers enhance the quality of education for students and provide opportunities for 
family and community involvement in the school.  
 
Guidelines 
 
 

1.  Volunteers fulfill specific needs as approved by the Principal, or Designate, and 
are responsible to the Principal or Vice-Principal.   
 

2. Some training may be required prior to the commencement of the volunteer activity 
(i.e., Appendix A of Policy 706, Employee Code of Conduct).  
 

3. School volunteers shall work at all times under the direction of a teacher, Principal, 
and/or Vice-Principal. 
 
a) If a volunteer is required to work alone with a student or to accompany a student 

on overnight activities or to work with a student for an extended period of time, 
the volunteer must provide a criminal reference check and vulnerable sector 
check;



 

 
Policy Section:  School Administration  
 
Policy Name:  Use of Volunteers 

 

 

300 
BOARD June 14, 

2022 
306 

 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
b) For all other volunteers who do not provide this documentation, a teacher must 

be present at all times assume supervision responsibilities when the volunteer 
is with the students; and 

 
c) Criminal reference checks and vulnerable sector checks will be paid for upon 

provision of a receipt out of the school budget and filed at the school.  
 

4. Volunteers shall be required to sign an Oath of Confidentiality (see Appendix A).  
 

5. Volunteers involved in co-curricular activities should be familiar with the Keewatin-
Patricia District School Board manual developed for this purpose and the 
NorWOSSA Coaches’ Handbook. Policies and procedures as they apply to the 
activity as well as school policy and expectations. 
 

6. Volunteers are covered by the Ontario School Boards’ Insurance Exchange 
provided they act within the scope of the described role.  
 

7. When an allegation of misconduct is made against a volunteer, the Principal, or 
Designate, will do the following: 
 
a) Remove the volunteer during the investigation; and  

 
b) Notify the appropriate superintendent.  
 

8. A volunteer found to be guilty of misconduct will no longer be accepted as a 
volunteer in our Board.  If the conduct involves behaviour that contravenes the law, 
the Principal, or Designate, will refer the matter to Child and Family Services or the 
police.  

 
 



 

 
 

 
Policy Section:  School Administration  

 
Policy Name:  Progressive Discipline and  
Promoting a Positive School Climate 

 

300 
 

Board June 14, 2022 
329 

 

 
Cross Reference 
Ontario Regulate 472/07 
Policies 
302, Search and Seizure in the Schools 
321, Safe and Supportive Schools 
322, Code of Conduct 
323, Student Use of Service Animals 
330, Character Development 
503, Equity, and Inclusive Education 
708, Respectful Working and Learning Environments 
709, Workplace Harassment 
Procedures 
321, Safe and Supportive Schools  
329l, Progressive Discipline and Promoting a Positive School Climate 

Date Adopted:  12/02/2008 
Dates Revised: 12/01/2010; 11/06/2013; 

24/04/2018; 27/04/2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Review by: 2026 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 

Policy Statement 
 
It is the policy of the Keewatin-Patricia District School Board (KPDSB) to build upon strategies 
that promote positive student behaviour and to employ an approach to student discipline that 
utilizes a continuum of interventions, supports, and consequences to address inappropriate 
student behaviour.  In particular, KPDSB will employ the principles and strategies of a 
restorative practice model when appropriate in addressing inappropriate student behaviour, and 
as a proactive intervention measure.  
 
This Policy provides direction and supports the implementation of a progressive discipline 
approach to ensure a safe, orderly, caring, and nurturing learning environment within the 
schools of the KPDSB.  
 
Rationale 
 
The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board recognizes that programs and activities that focus 
on the building of healthy relationships, inclusive and equitable learning environments, character 
development and positive peer relations provide the foundation for an effective continuum of 
strategies within a school and school-related activities.  These supportive and empowerment 
programs are the basis for creating a positive school climate.  
 
 
Guidelines 
 
The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board approves and supports the following:  
 

1. The goal of the policy is to support a safe, inclusive, and accepting learning and teaching 
environment in which every student can reach their full potential. 
 

2. All inappropriate student behaviour, including bullying, harassment, violence, and racism 
must be addressed.   



 

 
 

 
Policy Section:  School Administration  

 
Policy Name:  Progressive Discipline and  
Promoting a Positive School Climate 

 

300 
 

Board June 14, 2022 
329 

 

 
Page 2 of 2 
 

3. Responses to behaviours that are contrary to KPDSB’s Policy 322 – Code of Conduct 
must be individualized and developmentally appropriate.  
 

4. Progressive discipline is an approach that makes use of a continuum of prevention 
programs, interventions, supports, and consequences, building upon strategies that build 
skills for healthy relationships and promote positive behaviours.  
 

5. The range of interventions, supports, and consequences used by the KPDSB, and all 
schools, must be clear and developmentally appropriate and must include learning 
opportunities for students in order to reinforce positive behaviours and help students 
make good choices.  
 

6. Information in the student’s Individualized Education Plan (IEP) must be considered in 
the determination of interventions, supports, and consequences for students with special 
education needs.  
 

7. When imposing discipline, the KPDSB and school administrators must consider all 
mitigating and other factors, as required by the Education Act and as set out in Ontario 
Regulation 472/07. 

 
Definitions  
 
“Progressive Discipline” is an approach that utilizes a continuum of prevention programs, 
interventions, supports, and consequences to address inappropriate student behaviour and to 
build skills for healthy relationships, and build upon strategies that promote and foster positive 
behaviours.  When inappropriate behaviour occurs, disciplinary measures should be applied 
within a framework that shifts the focus from one that is solely punitive to one that is both 
corrective and supportive.  
 
“Restorative Practice” is an approach that focuses on repairing the harm caused by offending 
behaviour while holding the offender accountable for their actions.  It provides an opportunity for 
the parties directly affected by such behaviour – victim, offender, and community – to 
identify and address their needs that result from the offending behaviour, and seek a 
resolution that affords reparation, healing, and reintegration, and prevents future harm. 
 



 

 
Policy Section:  School Administration 
 
Policy Name:  Safe and Supportive Schools 

 

300 
Board June 14, 2022 

321 

 

 

Cross Reference 
Policies:  
302, Search and Seizure in Schools  
310, Child Abuse and/or Neglect 
319, Substance Use by Students 
322, Code of Conduct 
325, Access to Schools  
329, Progressive Discipline and Promoting a Positive School Climate 
330, Character Development 
503, Equity and Inclusive Education 
706, Employee Code of Conduct 
709, Workplace Harassment 
Procedures 
321, Safe and Supportive Schools  
330, Character Development 
902, Ontario School Records 

Date Adopted: 12/02/2002 
Date Reviewed: 13/05/2003 

Dates Revised: 12/02/2008; 08/03/2011; 
11/06/2013; 09/06/2015; 24/04/2018;  

27/04/2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Review By: 2026 

Page 1 of 7 
 

Policy Statement 
 
 
It is the policy of the Keewatin-Patricia District School Board (KPDSB) to provide peaceful and 
welcoming learning environments that are safe, orderly, nurturing, positive, and respectful.  
 
This policy is an umbrella statement under which all administrative regulations, operating 
procedures, and the KPDSB’s Codes of Conduct (Policy #322) relating to student discipline will 
be written.  This policy incorporates guidelines that must be administered uniformly throughout 
KPDSB.  
 
This Policy authorizes all KPDSB Procedures, enacted by the KPDSB, that set out activities 
leading to possible suspension and/or expulsion.  
 
Rationale 
 
 
The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board believes that all members of the school learning 
community have the right to be safe and feel safe within their school community.  With this comes 
the responsibility to demonstrate respect for social justice and human rights, the promotion of the 
values needed to develop responsible members of a democratic society, and an acceptance that 
emphasizes equity of opportunity and outcomes.  
 
This will be achieved by establishing and maintaining high expectations for behaviours.  The 
KPDSB promotes a proactive and preventative approach with a strong emphasis on early 
intervention, conflict prevention and resolution, counselling, inclusion of social skills in the 
curriculum, and support for all members of the school community.  
 
 



 

 
Policy Section:  School Administration 
 
Policy Name:  Safe and Supportive Schools 

 

300 
Board June 14, 2022 

321 

 

Page 2 of 7 
 

Guidelines 
 
 
Members of the Keewatin-Patricia District School Board approve and support the following: 

 
1. Bullying adversely affects a student’s well-being and ability to learn;  

 
2. Bullying adversely affects the school climate, including healthy relationships; 

 
3. Bullying, including cyber-bullying, is a serious issue and is not acceptable in the school 

environment (including virtual), in a school-related activity, or in any other circumstances 
that will have an impact on the school climate; 

 
4. Violence of any type will not be tolerated in any form in our schools; 

 
5. Acts of violence within the school environment will be handled within the parameters of 

this policy and the Code of Conduct that will provide the principal with the latitude to apply 
appropriate consequences; 

 
6. Coaches and supervisors will conduct all school-based events in a manner consistent with 

the spirit of this Safe and Supportive Schools Policy; 
 

7. All members of the school learning community will annually be made aware, by the 
principal, that the Safe and Supportive Schools Policies are in effect in each school and 
that there are services to address the needs of those who have been harmed as well as 
those who have caused harm; 

 
8. All employees of the board must take seriously all allegations of bullying behaviour, 

including cyber-bullying, and act in a timely, sensitive, and supportive manner when 
responding to students who disclose or report bullying incidents;   
 

9. All school staff, under the leadership of their principals, must provide ongoing support for 
offenders and victims of bullying as well as those who have been affected by observing 
bullying; 
 

10. Schools will focus on the principles of safe schools, non-violence, and violence prevention; 
 

11. Through a system-wide approach, all employees of the KPDSB may be trained in the 
principles of Restorative Practice; 
 

12. All participants in KPDSB schools - students, parents or guardians, volunteers, employees 
- are governed by this Policy whether they are on school or Board property, on school 
buses, participating in school-authorized events or activities off school premises; and 



 

 
Policy Section:  School Administration 
 
Policy Name:  Safe and Supportive Schools 

 

300 
Board June 14, 2022 

321 

 

Page 3 of 7 
 

13. For further reference, see KPDSB Procedure 321, Safe and Supportive Schools, which 
are available on the Board website. CLICK HERE 

Components of Safe School Policy  
 
 

1. The School Environment  
 
The KPDSB will provide a safe, welcoming, violence-free environment in its schools that 
promotes a sense of belonging, which includes assurance that:  
 
 Positive behaviour is acknowledged and rewarded;  
 Positive behaviour is modelled by all staff;  
 Discipline strategies are fair and focus on teaching students about appropriate 

behaviours while maintaining their self-respect;  
 A sense of responsibility, empowerment, and ownership is encouraged in students 

by all members of the school community; 
 Achievement and wellness are fostered in all students;  
 Wide participation in extra-curricular activities by all students is encouraged; and  
 Parental/guardian involvement and community participation are invited and 

welcomed.  
 

Principals and/or the Superintendents or Facility Manager will review each school’s policy 
and consider the following elements in creating safe schools:  
 
 Physical plant aspects such as proper lighting, the securing of unsafe areas, safe 

storage of dangerous objects, maintenance of playground equipment;  
 The presence of responsible adults in the schoolyard and in the corridors;  
 Procedures for dealing with visitors and strangers in the school (see KPDSB Policy 

325 – Access to Schools); and  
 Procedures for dealing with police and other emergency services.  

 
2. Violence Prevention  

 
The KPDSB will provide opportunities for students to:  
 
 Develop the attributes of good character;  
 Understand how to be alert and prudent about personal safety;  
 Develop, practice, and reflect on interpersonal skills, communication, and problem-

solving skills such as negotiation, mediation, management of conflict, 
assertiveness, and the ability to cope with change or frustration;  

http://www.kpdsb.on.ca/pages/view/policy-and-procedure-main-index-2021


 

 
Policy Section:  School Administration 
 
Policy Name:  Safe and Supportive Schools 

 

300 
Board June 14, 2022 

321 

 

Page 4 of 7 
 

 Develop self-confidence and enhance self-esteem;  
 Acquire the ability to understand, respect, and care for others;  
 Acquire skills that will be useful in their existing and future relationships, such as 

parenting; and  
 Develop the ability to value and respect the diversity of people and points of view 

in society.  
 

3. Equity  
 
The KPDSB will not tolerate discrimination based on the prohibited grounds as defined in 
the Ontario Human Rights Code, which include, but are not limited to :  
 
 Race;  
 National or ethnic origin; 
 Colour; 
 Creed (religion);  
 Age;  
 Sex; 
 Sexual orientation;  
 Family status; 
 Physical and/or mental disability;  
 Gender identity and gender expression; and/or  
 Citizenship.  

 
For further direction, access the KPDSB Policy 503 – Equity and Inclusive Education.  
 

4. Staff Development  
 
The KPDSB will include the following elements in its staff development programs:  
 

 Developing an awareness of KPDSB Code of Conduct and related policies;  
 Developing an understanding of the elements of the KPDSB’s Character 

Development Program;  
 Recognizing signs of physical, sexual, or mental abuse and/or neglect, and 

awareness of the protocol in KPDSB Policy 310 – Child Abuse and/or Neglect;  
 Applying School Bard and school procedures consistently;  
 Identifying and eliminating bias and discrimination on the basis of race, culture, 

religion, gender, language, disability, sexual orientation, or other attributes such 
as income or appearance; and  

 Modelling positive behaviour (i.e., treating everyone with respect, interacting 
peacefully, avoiding stereotypes, etc.).  



 

 
Policy Section:  School Administration 
 
Policy Name:  Safe and Supportive Schools 

 

300 
Board June 14, 2022 

321 

 

Page 5 of 7 
 

 
In addition, staff development for teachers and administration will include:  
 
 Developing a welcoming, inviting, and safe environment;  
 Liaising with community agencies to prevent or deal with problems;  
 Incorporating instructional strategies such as cooperative learning and role-playing 

to help students develop interpersonal skills;  
 Developing skills in early identification and intervention;  
 Supporting the safety and welfare of victims;  
 Planning for the reintegration of perpetrators of violence or discrimination;  
 Mediating and managing conflict (including those occurring in large group 

situations) in order to diffuse them;  
 Supporting the unique learning styles of all students; and  
 Using fair discipline strategies that focus on teaching the student about appropriate 

behaviours while maintaining their self-respect.  
 

5. Home, School, and Community Involvement  
 
The KPDSB believes it is a shared responsibility among parents/guardians, school, and 
community:  
 
 To assist students in maintaining their lives and relationships in non-violent ways; 

and  
 To enable students to develop the knowledge, skills, and attitudes necessary to 

prevent violence and to deal with violent and potentially violent situations.  
 

6. Code of Conduct 
 
The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board Code of Conduct, Policy 322, will be 
communicated to staff, students, parents/guardians, and the community on an annual 
basis.  School Councils will be involved in the review of the Code of Conduct.  
 

7. Suspensions and Expulsions  
 
a) It is the policy of the KPDSB to deal with the suspension of students in accordance 

with the Education Act and the regulations made thereunder. 
 

b) Activities Leading to Possible Suspension: 
 

Pursuant to section 306 of the Education Act, a Principal shall consider whether to 
suspend a student if they believe that the student has engaged in any of the following 



 

 
Policy Section:  School Administration 
 
Policy Name:  Safe and Supportive Schools 

 

300 
Board June 14, 2022 

321 

 

Page 6 of 7 
 

activities while at school, at a school-related activity, or in other circumstances where 
engaging in the activity will have an impact on the school climate, subject to the 
mitigating and other factors:  
 

If a student in junior kindergarten to Grade 3 engages 
in any of the activities listed below, the Principal will 
conduct an investigation regarding the allegations to 
determine if the student should be suspended. 

For students in Grades 4-12 only.  
(Students in junior kindergarten to Grade 3 can no longer 
be suspended for these activities.  If a student in junior 
kindergarten to Grade 3 engages in any of the activities 
listed below, the Principal must consider what positive 
behaviour supports could be provided to the student).  
 

a. Trafficking in weapons or in illegal drugs;  
 

b. Possessing a weapon, including possessing a 
firearm;  

 

c. Using a weapon to cause or to threaten bodily 
harm to another person;  

 

d. Committing physical assault on another person 
that causes bodily harm requiring treatment by a 
medical practitioner;  

 

e. Committing sexual assault;  
 

f. Committing robbery; 
 

g. Giving alcohol or cannabis to a minor; 
 

h. Issuing a bomb threat or causing a bomb threat to 
be issued;  

 

i. Any activity that is motivated by bias, prejudice, or 
hate;  

 

j. Engaging in a pattern of behaviour that is so 
refractory that the student’s presence is injurious 
to the effective learning and/or working 
environment of others;  

 

k. Engaging in an act:  
 
i) That causes the student’s continuing 

presence in the school to be injurious to the 
physical or mental well-being of other 
students or persons in the school; or  

ii) That causes extensive damage to the 
property of the KPDSB or to goods that are 
on School Board property.  

a. Uttering a threat to inflict serious bodily harm on 
another person;  

 

b. Possessing alcohol or illegal drugs;  
 

c. Being under the influence of alcohol or, unless the 
person is a medical cannabis user, cannabis or illegal 
drugs; 

 

d. Swearing at a teacher or at another person in position 
of authority;  

 

e. Committing an act of vandalism that causes 
extensive damage to school property at the student’s 
school or to property located on the premises of the 
student’s school; 

 

f. Bullying, including cyber-bullying;  
 

g. Persistent opposition to authority, willful destruction 
of school property, use of profane or improper 
language, or conduct injurious to the moral tone of the 
school or to the physical or mental well-being of 
others in the school;  

 

h. Possession of vaping devices/paraphernalia for the 
purposes of selling; or  

 

i. Possession of drug paraphernalia.  



 

 
Policy Section:  School Administration 
 
Policy Name:  Safe and Supportive Schools 

 

300 
Board June 14, 2022 

321 

 

Page 7 of 7 
 

8. Mandatory Suspension of Students Pending Possible Expulsion  
 

a) It is the policy of the KPDSB to deal with expulsion of students in accordance with the 
Education Act and the regulations made thereunder.  
 

b) Activities Leading to Mandatory Suspension Pending Possible Expulsion for Students in 
Grades 4 to 12:  
 
A Principal shall consider whether to recommend to the Board that a student be expelled 
if they believe that the student has engaged in any of the following activities while at 
school, at a school-related activity, or in other circumstances where engaging in the 
activity will have an impact on the school climate, subject to the mitigating and other 
factors:  
 
i) Trafficking in weapons or in illegal drugs;  
ii) Possessing a weapon, including possessing a firearm;  
iii) Using a weapon to cause or to threaten bodily harm to another person;  
iv) Committing physical assault on another person that causes bodily harm requiring 

treatment by a medical practitioner;  
v) Committing sexual assault;  
vi) Committing robbery;  
vii) Bullying, if the student has been previously suspended for engaging in bullying and 

the student’s continuing presence in the school creates an unacceptable risk to the 
safety of another person;  

viii) Any activity listed in section 7 of this policy that is motivated by bias, prejudice, or 
hate;  

ix) Giving alcohol or cannabis to a minor;  
x) Issuing a bomb threat or causing a bomb threat to be issued;  
xi) Engaging in a pattern of behaviour that is so refractory that the student’s presence is 

injurious to the effective learning and/or working environment of others; or  
xii) Engaging in an act:  

• That causes the student’s continuing presence in the school to be injurious to 
the physical or mental well-being of other students or persons in the school; 
or  

• That causes extensive damage to the property of the KPDSB or to goods that 
are on School Board property.  

 

 

 



 

 
Policy Section:  Business and Administrative 
                          Matters 
 

Policy Name:  Honorariums to Support 
                       Students 
 

 

600 
BOARD June 14, 

2022 
 

617 

 

 
Cross Reference 
Broader Public Sector Accountability Act, 2010 (PART IV – Allowable Expenses) 
Policies 
502, Indigenous Education Advisory Committee 
706, Employee Code of Conduct 

Date Adopted: 08/12/2015 
Dates Revised: 11/04/2017; 09/02/2021; 

18/05/2022 
 
 

Review By: 20264 
 
Page 1 of 3 
 

Policy Statement 
 
 
It is the policy of the Keewatin-Patricia District School Board (KPDSB) to acknowledge and show 
appreciation and respect for the personal time given to by Elders, Knowledge Keepers, Métis 
Senators, community members, and in some cases special guests who support KPDSB students 
and staff in their teaching and learning. While this policy statement applies to all Elders, 
Knowledge Keepers, Métis Senators, and community members who support students in the 
KPDSB, it is frequently for the sharing of First Nations, Métis, and Inuit (FNMI) knowledge.  
 
Rationale 
 
 
Traditional information and knowledge that has been learned through cultural teachings and 
community-based have become a critical part of the learning environment in all KPDSB schools.  
Elders, Knowledge Keepers, or Métis Senators from the various communities and treaty areas of 
Treaty #3 and Treaty #9, are important connections for KPDSB students, staff, and administration, 
and provide unique and proven opportunities for collaboration between Frist Nations, Métis 
Nation, and KPDSB schools.  
 
Traditionally, food, clothing, and medicines would have been used to gift the Elder, Knowledge 
Keeper, or Métis Senators.  Today, these items and/or monetary honorariums may be given as a 
demonstration of respect and appreciation.  The practice of giving is culturally appropriate and is 
implemented through many agencies in Northwestern Ontario that includes the geographic areas 
of the KPDSB.  An Elder, Knowledge Keeper, or Métis Senator does not have the expectation to 
receive the honorarium, however, appreciates the gesture of what is given.  Not all Elders, 
Knowledge Keepers, or Métis Senators will accept the gift or honorarium, and may voluntarily 
give their time at no cost as well.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
Policy Section:  Business and Administrative 
                          Matters 
 

Policy Name:  Honorariums to Support 
                       Students 
 

 

600 
BOARD June 14, 

2022 
 

617 

 

Page 2 of 3 
 

Guidelines 
 
 

1. The KPDSB will adhere to and comply with the Broader Public Sector Expenses Directive 
under the authority of the Broader Public Sector Accountability Act, 2010 (Part IV – 
Allowable Expenses).  
 

2. The KPDSB will assure transparency in the provision of monetary honorariums when 
recognizing First Nations, Métis, or Inuit Elder, Knowledge Keeper, or Senator teachings 
inside and outside of schools and classrooms.  
 

3. The KPDSB will provide fairness, transparency, and consistency across the system when 
awarding or providing honorariums to Elders or Senators, and First Nations, Métis, and Inuit 
community members invited to KPDSB schools.  
 

4. The KPDSB will establish consistent rates of honorariums to be paid at a half-day and a 
daily rate, for all schools and Elders, Knowledge Keepers, Métis Senators, and community 
members. 
 

5. The KPDSB will ensure that honorariums will be approved prior to a classroom or school 
visit, and approval will be required in advance by the school Principal or Designate.  In 
some cases where warranted, this approval may also be the appropriate supervisory 
officer.  
 

6. Employees shall be mindful of conflict of interest, as outlined in KPDSB Policy 706 – 
Employee Code of Conduct when inviting and/or approving honoraria for Elders, 
Knowledge Keepers, and Senators particularly avoiding decisions/recommendations that 
may result in the personal, financial, or material gain of a relative, friend, and/or business 
associate. School staff may not receive honoraria.  
 

7. In the interests of transparency and the spending of public funds, the KPDSB will not permit 
immediate family members of staff to be requested as Elders into a classroom or school for 
which an honorarium would normally be paid.  
 
a) An exception may be provided if the Elder is considered a casual employee with the 

KPDSB and is under contract to provide such services to an identified school and/or 
has written approval of the appropriate supervisory officer (i.e., Elder in Residence).  

 
8. The KPDSB will provide honorariums to Elders in the following amounts when invited into 

schools of Board events:  
 
a) Half Day (150 minutes or less) – One Hundred and Fifty Dollars ($100150.00); or 
b) Full Day – Two Three Hundred Dollars ($200300.00) 



 

 
Policy Section:  Business and Administrative 
                          Matters 
 

Policy Name:  Honorariums to Support 
                       Students 
 

 

600 
BOARD June 14, 

2022 
 

617 

 

Page 3 of 3 
 

Guidelines 
 
 

“FNMI” – First Nation, Métis, and Inuit Students, the terminology officially used by the Ministry of 
Education in its provincial framework for Aboriginal students and families.  
 
“Elder” – term used to identify a member of a local, or regional, First Nation, Métis, and Inuit 
community who is deemed to possess cultural expertise and relative teachings for the benefit of 
students and staff.  
 
“Senator” – term used to identify a member of Métis Nation who is deemed to possess cultural 
expertise and relative teachings for the benefit of students, staff, and future generations.  
 
“Knowledge Keeper” – is a person who is trusted, respected, and valued by the communities they 
serve.  This acknowledgement has been earned through their many experiences, clean way of 
living, and willingness to help others in time of need.  
 
“Honorarium” – a gift to an Elder, Senator, or Knowledge Keeper after being invited into a KPDSB 
classroom, school, or learning setting by a Principal, supervisory officer, and/or Director of 
Education.  
 
“IEAC” – Indigenous Education Advisory Committee; a KPDSB Committee that meets a minimum 
of three (3) times per year and to advise the regional partners of the KPDSB progress on First 
Nation, Métis, and Inuit education, and the Board on identified areas of ongoing need.  
 



 BOARD Meeting 
June 14, 2022 

 
 

 
The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning. 

 
 

 
 
 
Student Trustee Report 

 
I have been working on trying to get one more interview in for my project however the Elder I 
had lined up for this was unable to attend.  I am hopeful that I can reschedule a time to meet 
with this elder soon, I have chosen a nice location to meet with them.  Mr. Len Gardner has 
been so helpful in assisting with my presentation on Elders in our communities.  
 
It has been very busy for me and everyone at school.  
 
Unfortunately, I won’t be attending the OPSBA Annual General Meeting in Ottawa due to my 
very busy schedule, however, I hope you enjoy your time there.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Respectfully submitted by: 
MacKenzie Shakakeesic 

Indigenous Student Trustee 



 BOARD Meeting 
June 14, 2022 

 
 

 
The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning. 

 
 

 
 
 
Student Trustee Report 

 

Prom: 
Prom was on June 4, 2022 on a Saturday night. It was held at the Red Lake Legion. We had a 
good amount of people show up. 
 
Video: 
For those of you who do not know about my video, I am in the process of putting together a 
video for the Grade 8’s transitioning to high school. This video will address the concerns and 
questions that Grade 8’s have about high school. I do believe that many 8th graders have 
anxiety about entering high school. I know that if I was in grade 8, I would appreciate this.  
 
Anyways, I have met with Michelle Parrish a few times regarding the topic. The first time I met 
her was to discuss my topic with her and give her an idea of what I was planning. The second 
time we made a google form to send to the schools around the region. I will attach the google 
form down below. The last time I met with Mrs. Parrish, we put together an email that I would 
send to all 10 of the principals, to pass on to their grade 8 teachers. The teachers are supposed 
to discuss this as a class and fill it out, students also have the choice to fill it out themselves.  
 
The google form is planned to be closed June 9 to start collection results and filming of the 
responses. 
 
Google Form: google form 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Respectfully submitted by: 
Mason Gallagher 
 Student Trustee 

https://docs.google.com/forms/d/e/1FAIpQLSfx0Tbo3DZAqPBuYlB9n6dzbFMJmw6FbaBByqEBvyZYXTQJVQ/viewform?usp=sf_link


 June Board Meeting 
June 14, 2022 

 
 

 
The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning. 

 
 

 
2019-2024 Strategic Plan Update 

 

The 2021-2022 school year saw progress towards our goals as indicated in the 2019-2024 
Strategic Plan, and included a mid-plan review of the five-year plan to ensure it continues to 
meet the goals and needs of the system. 

This update will include a focus on data collected both at the school and board level with 
regards to the identified goals and indicators in the revised 2019-2024 Strategic Plan. 

Student Achievement: Ensure the necessary resources are provided 
to all students to increase their individual achievement. 

Indicator: School and system learning recovery programs are provided for students. 

System Learning Recovery 

• Reach Ahead Credit (offered to all KPDSB schools and partner schools including First 
Nation communities) 

• Summer School offerings by school along with virtual options across the Board 

Each Secondary School in KPDSB created a Re-Engagement/Learning Recovery Plan.  An 
overview of those plans can be found below. 

School Programs/Actions 

Sioux North High School ● Lac Seul Program/Partnership (more details on 
this program can be found below this table). 

● Hired an Indigenous Tutor. 
● Distance Learning Credit for students attending 

from communities supported with additional 
staff. 

● Pilot of Lexia Reading program in a Grade 9 
class. 

Dryden High School ● Tutoring to provide ongoing credit rescue 
support during the school day. 

Red Lake District High School ● Weekend Credit Rescue support for students 
with transportation.  Tutors have been hired to 

http://www.kpdsb.on.ca/pages/view/2019-2024-strategic-plan


KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
2019-2024 Strategic Plan Update 

June 14, 2022  
Page 2 

 

 

work with students outside the school day.  On 
Saturday, May 28th , 12 students attended the 
Learning Recovery session.  More sessions 
scheduled in June. 

● A teacher from Red Lake travels to Ear Falls to 
support students who are disengaged and 
students who have chosen virtual learning. The 
students and teacher meet at Ear Falls Public 
School.  Students have been successful in 
completing credits. One student now has a 
coop placement in Ear Falls.   

Crolancia Public School ● Released a teacher for one period to focus on 
student success. 

● Each secondary student at Crolancia now has 
a portfolio of strengths, successes and goals 
for future education and career aspirations. 

Beaver Brae Secondary School ● Experiential learning focus in alternative 
program delivery. 

● Hired an Indigenous Tutor and an Intermediate 
Graduation Coach to support students 7-12. 

Ignace Public School ● Credit Rescue opportunities. 

Four Directions Indigenous 
Graduation Coaches 

● Credit Rescue and supports for students 
ongoing. 

Sioux North High School and Lac Seul Partnership Program  

Goal:  Re-Engagement and Learning Recovery 

Sioux North School had the highest numbers of students who disengaged during the COVID-19 
pandemic.  In Quadmester Three, a collaborative effort by the Board, school and community 
has resulted in a successful partnership program and student success.  In partnership with 
Sioux North High School and Lac Seul First Nation, the Rapid Response Northern School Team 
(two members) have been facilitating a re-engagement classroom based out of the community 
of Lac Seul.  These students have previously been non-attenders.  Of the 20 that signed up, 12 
are still engaged in some way and there are two potential graduates as a result of the program. 

 

 



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
2019-2024 Strategic Plan Update 

June 14, 2022  
Page 3 

 

 

Sioux North Student Quotes: 

• Student 1 -  “I like coming here because there is more room to hang out and less 
pressure.”  

• Student 2 - “I like that I get picked up at my house and it’s not so early.”  

Teacher Quotes: 

• “It’s really great to see kids open up and feel more comfortable in this space.  Especially 
students who I have known in the past and see a different side of them.” 

• “I like that we are able to be more creative in the activities we do with the students.” 

Parent Letter: 

I am writing this letter to say that I am extremely happy with this program in FMH with Sioux 
North High School and LSFN.  Not sure if it has a name. My son is a part of this program and 
also likes going there.  He is doing extremely well and has already gotten a couple of credits 
already.   

My son has difficulty leaving to go to the actual high school in Sioux Lookout, and also has a 
hard time learning due to learning issues.  And this program has made it a little easier for him to 
learn and concentrate due to the small class size and not going to far from home.    

I really hope that the Education program and Sioux North continue on with this program in 
September and the years to follow.  I just wanted to let you all know that I am happy with this 
program and Good Job!  This can also be shown to whomever is involved from Sioux North.  

To date, 20 Sioux North High School students are on the class list for the program taking place 
in Lac Seul.  On average, nine students attend every day.  Students have lunch together, 
participate in team building and wellness activities daily.  12 credits have been earned and two 
students are looking forward to graduation on June 23, 2022.  

Indicator: Alternative Programs that meet individual student needs. Track and monitor 
student achievement. 

 



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
2019-2024 Strategic Plan Update 

June 14, 2022  
Page 4 

 

 

 

Indicator: Improved attendance through tracking and re-engagement strategies.   

How many students were referred to attendance counsellors in the 2021-22 school year 
compared to the 2020-21 school year? 

2020-2021 420 Students Referred 

2021-2022 185 Students Referred 

Indicator: Student leavers data reviewed and shared to board annually. 

Early Leaver Data:  2020-2021 and 2021-2022 

Reason 2020-2021 2021-2022 

All Early Leavers 604 students ● 437 enrolled at some 
point this year 

● 108 have yet to earn 
credits (may be 
working on it in Quad 
4 or through KAE) 

● 329 of these 
students have 
earned a total of 
1492 credits 

● 12 OSSDs 
● 2 with SHSM 

54% of all early leavers 
returned and earned credits. 



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
2019-2024 Strategic Plan Update 

June 14, 2022  
Page 5 

 

 

Retired Prior to Completion - 
Destination Unknown 

120 students ● 66 re-enrolled 
● 26 students earned a 

total of 105.5 credits 
and 2 OSSDs 

22% of early leavers who 
were unknown/not attending 
returned and earned credits. 

What steps have been taken to re-engage secondary students? 

• Each school has a specific re-engagement plan that involves school administration and 
the school’s Student Success team 

• Regular tracking of students  
• Referrals to attendance counsellors 
• Collaborative school team meetings to plan for student re-engagement 
• Collaboratively work with partners to plan for student re-engagement 
• Home visits 
• Continue to identify barriers to attendance and respond with solutions oriented plans 

What challenges were identified that prevented the school from re-engaging students? 

• Mental health challenges 
• Addiction challenges e.g. drugs, alcohol, video gaming 
• Student moved to another board  
• Student funding providers removed the student for various reasons  
• Historical pattern of non-attendance since elementary school 
• Student moved to remote learning 
• Transportation 
• Home community COVID protocols 
• Lack of boarding homes available for students from Northern First Nation communities 

Indicator: Graduates participate in exit interviews to inform board improvement plans 
and goal setting. 

Exit surveys are a great way for us to learn more about our students’ experiences and their 
plans for the future.  The information collected will help to support system and school planning 
for the upcoming school year.  Please click here to view KPDSB Exit Survey data as of June 
2022. 

Indicator: KPDSB will ensure that students have opportunities to develop and strengthen 
transferable skills which are critical for success in education, career/life. 

7/8 Pathways implemented a Certification, Micro-credentials, and Skills Training (C/MST) 
Program to provide students with learning opportunities and thereby gain knowledge, skills, and 
experiences in specific areas from presenters from a variety of career sectors in their 
community, region and beyond. Through these learning opportunities, students developed 

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1aGgTAskazhpdX2RxIz9HW_Z1S9j7Fzed?usp=sharing


KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
2019-2024 Strategic Plan Update 

June 14, 2022  
Page 6 

 

 

relationships with community members and others who shared their knowledge and experience 
with students. This supported students to explore opportunities for their future. 

Examples of these areas of focus for training include Customer Service, Leadership Skills, 
Conflict Resolution, Public Speaking, and Safe Work Skills. As students participated in these 
experiences, their Pathways Teachers added badges to individual student record sheets. For 
schools that participated, these record sheets will be presented to students at their Grade 8 
Graduation. Some certification, micro-credentials, and training also produced formal records of 
completion from the provider. Connecting students to the broader community such as through 
the C/MST Program, other guest presenters, and field trips is important to support student 
decision-making about their future (see sample record card below). 

 

 

 

 

 



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
2019-2024 Strategic Plan Update 

June 14, 2022  
Page 7 

 

 

Indicator: Through opportunities for career exploration and experiential learning, 
intermediate and secondary students will have equitable access to all pathways and they 
and their parents will have the support and information to make informed decisions 
about their future pathways and goals.  

Special Education 

KPDSB staff will continue to adapt and revise to meet the diverse needs of students and 
families.  Through opportunities for career exploration and experiential learning, intermediate 
and secondary students will have equitable access to all pathways and they and their parents 
will have the support and information to make informed decisions about their future pathways 
and goals.   

We have provided the opportunity for students and families to engage in the IPRC process 
when they have documentation that meet the criteria. This allows students and families to 
engage in conversations at least once per year to discuss their identification and placement, as 
well as pathway and supports needed. (see below for the number of IPRCs this year).  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2021-2022 
NUMBER OF IDENTIFICATION, PLACEMENT 
AND REVIEWS COMMITTEE REFERRALS 

(Initial IPRCs) 

Kenora 
Dryden 
Red Lake 
Sioux Lookout 

---- 34 
47 
3 
30 

NUMBER OF REVIEWS Kenora 
Dryden  
Red Lake  
Sioux Lookout  

---- 57 
40 
14 
25 

NUMBER OF CONFIRMATION OF CONTINUED 
IDENTIFICATION 

Kenora   
Dryden   
Red Lake 
Sioux Lookout 

---- 13 
46 
24 
32 

NUMBER OF APPEALS Kenora  
Dryden  
Red Lake  
Sioux Lookout 

---- 0 
0 
0 
0 

STUDENTS DE-IDENTIFIED Kenora         
Dryden   
Red Lake 
Sioux Lookout  

---- 0 
0 
0 
0 



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
2019-2024 Strategic Plan Update 

June 14, 2022  
Page 8 

 

 

Indicator: Students will have opportunities for student voice in the classroom, school 
and system. 

Student Senates 

The KPDSB hosted two Student Senates during the 2021-2022 school year: 

• Students from grades 7-12 participated in two Student Senates through virtual meetings. 
• Students were presented with questions and/or topics where student reflection and 

voice were necessary. 
• Students documented their comments in writing and shared them in small and whole 

group discussions 
• Student feedback was incorporated into the topics presented and in many cases, 

influenced and shaped their delivery/outcomes. 

Student Senate 1 - April 6, 2022 
Topic: Student Census 

Students went through each of the Students Come First Student Demographic Census 
questions and offered feedback. 

 Questions areas: 

• Languages 
• Indigenous Identity 
• Ethnic Origins 
• Race 
• Religion/Spirituality 
• Gender Identity and Sexual Orientation 
• Disability 
• Status in Canada 
• Caregiver Information 

Students provided feedback on individual questions, potential responses, the frameworks, 
support resources, the information leading up to each question and more.  Questions within the 
census were added to and modified in some cases to meet the needs of students. 

Students contributed greatly to how KPDSB would communicate census information to students 
and families.  KPDSB identified the importance of communication in this process so 
stakeholders involved understood the “why” and the “how” of the census.  

Student Senate 2 – June 1, 2022 
Topics: Census, Anti-Sex Trafficking, Semesters 

Questions: 

• How might our schools raise awareness and develop student knowledge about 
colonialism, racism, sexism, homophobia and ableism? How do we create caring 
schools, increase sense of belonging and reduce bullying?   



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
2019-2024 Strategic Plan Update 

June 14, 2022  
Page 9 

 

 

• What are your suggestions to ensure that students have and understand the important 
information about sex trafficking? 

• What are some considerations for administrators and educators in the transition back to 
the Semester System? 

Students provided extensive feedback on each of the questions which will be shared with 
administration for planning purposes. 

For more data around student voice, please see School Climate Survey Data under the ‘Safe 
and Supportive Schools’ section of this report. 

Safe and Supportive Schools: Ensure all students and staff have safe 
learning and working environments, where the academic and mental 

health needs of the child are met. 

Indicator: All students and staff feel safe, supported, accepted and ready to learn and 
work as evidenced by school climate surveys, reduced suspensions/violent incident 
reports and decreased student and staff absenteeism.  

Indicator: Students have a strong sense of belonging, and see themselves and their lived 
experiences at school.  Students are provided with varied opportunities to explore their 
strengths and interests and are actively involved in the school community.  

Please click here to view the KPDSB School Climate Survey data for the following groups: 

• Grade 4-6 Data 
• Grade 7-8 Data 
• Grades 9-12 Data 
• Parent/Caregiver Data 
• KPDSB Staff Data 

Indicator: Schools have a strong culture of care, and positive relationships are evident 
between staff, between staff and students and between students. Teachers facilitate 
positive relationships and connections between students. 

Please click here to view the Board Improvement and Equity Plan data from the KPDSB School 
Climate Survey.  

Indicator: Increased use of restorative practices to foster student voice, relationships, 
sense of belonging, connections, and importance. 

 Nearly all staff participated in training on Restorative Practices on the August 31, 2021 PD Day. 
 The following data is from the School Climate Survey results, which are linked to above. 

• 43% of teachers use circles often/daily in their classrooms  
• 78% of teachers are strongly agree/agree that they are comfortable using circles in their 

classroom.  

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1pazRAFpGF-FZA4OX3-HeKVPwzhcjDUYc?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1F6rNmRgZZQ8ad5gcC69DBXl6ZnvcK0Kz/view?usp=sharing


KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
2019-2024 Strategic Plan Update 

June 14, 2022  
Page 10 

 

 

• 49.44% of teachers always obtain student voice and do things “with” students, such as 
collaborate on classroom expectations.  

• 48.88% of teachers sometimes obtain student voice and do things “with” students, such 
as collaborate on classroom expectations. 

Indicator: Increased professional development for staff regarding equity, mental health 
and trauma informed practice/awareness. 

The following sessions have been offered during the 2021-2022 school year: 

• Equity Committee run by Superintendent Lower 
• August 31, 2021 Supporting Student Mental Health and Well-Being / Mentally Healthy 

Return to School 
• Classroom 180 – 30 KPDSB staff participated in certificate training 
• Dr Jean Clinton Session for Administration – Sept 22, 2021 
• Monthly NAN Mental Health Champion Meetings (Kevin Lameroux, Dr. Chris 

Mushqwash, NAN Hope, ONECA, Noojimo Health, Educational Impact) 
• Mental Health Promotion (random acts of kindness and gratitude February challenge,  

Be Kind Passport, Chatterhigh) 
• 15 NAN Mental Health Champions received Mental Health First Aid training 
• New Teacher Induction Program (NTIP) Session: Supporting Student Mental Health 
• NTIP Session: NAN Mental Health Champion model 
• School Mental Health Ontario (SMHO) New Mental Health Leads webinar 
• Kids in the Know training for administration 
• Canadian Centre for Child Protection Community Evening Session for parents and 

caregivers on May 4, 2022 
• Anti-Sex Trafficking PD on the April 2022 PD day 
• ASIST training for student counsellors, select grad coaches and family navigators 
• SNAP in schools training in June 2022 
• Critical Thinking Sessions 

Indicator: Incorporating mental health and well-being within curriculum content. 

The following actions/initiatives have been implemented in the 2021-2022 school year. 

• Introduction of Chatterhigh online mental health modules (Red Lake area pilot) 
• School Mental Health Ontario (SMHO) materials directly in classrooms - 15 minutes a 

day 
• Be Well NWO Passport  
• Group presentations by student counsellors  

 Building Identity (how we see ourselves, and how others see us) 
 Positive Coping Strategies 
 Self-Care 
 Being Respectful to Self and Others 
 Strengths Building 
 Cognitive Distortions (Negative Thinking Traps) 
 Reframing Negative Thoughts 
 Gender and Sexuality 
 Online Safety 
 Cyber Bullying / Bullying 



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
2019-2024 Strategic Plan Update 

June 14, 2022  
Page 11 

 

 

 Social Skills  
 Personal Space and Consent 
 Bullying 
 Safe social Media Use 
 Healthy Relationships 
 Positive self-talk 
 Self-esteem 
 Taking Care of your Mental Health 
 Eating Disorders/Disordered Eating 
 Community Resources 
 Careers in Mental Health 
 Dynamic Mindfulness 
 Zones of Regulation 
 Self-regulation 
 Self-advocacy 
 Confidence Building 
 Kindness Series / Overall kindness 
 Respect for Yourself and Others 
 Inclusivity 
 Mental health Introduction (for grade 9 classes) 
 Healthy Relationships (Healthy Minds Book Club - Grade 9 and 10 

females) 
 Life Promotion  
 Stress Coping mechanisms (breathing and grounding)  

Leadership: Inspiring excellence and building future capacity. 

Indicator: Continual identification and support of aspiring leaders for succession 
planning based on the leadership competency frameworks. 

Principal & Vice-Principal Hiring Pools 

This year, KPDSB placed 11 new Vice-Principal Candidates into the Vice-Principal Hiring Pool 
from various communities throughout the board.  The Vice-Principal Pool takes part in monthly 
learning sessions to help grow their skillset while waiting for opportunities present themselves 
for Vice-Principal roles.  This year we also re-established a Principal Pool for current Vice-
Principals to identify their interest in, and be interviewed to be placed into the Principal Pool.  
We have already had the opportunity to hire new administrators from each of the pools for new 
administrative roles for next year. 

Positions of Added Responsibility (PARs) Learning Sessions 

Area Leaders or PARS meet every six to eight weeks.  The goal of the professional learning 
conversations is to examine practice and through collaboration make adjustments to improve 
instruction and student learning.  PARs meet regularly with assessment expert and educational 
consultant, Sandra Herbst to deepen our understanding of quality classroom assessment, 
learning goals, co-constructing success criteria, how to gather valid and reliable evidence of 
student learning and more.  This opportunity to network; to share resources; and, to discuss 



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
2019-2024 Strategic Plan Update 

June 14, 2022  
Page 12 

 

 

curriculum content and pedagogical strategies allows us to benefit from the expertise of our KP 
colleagues while we improve student learning and achievement.  

January 2021 • Adult Learning 
• Assessment for Learning 

March 2021 • High Yield Instructional Strategies 

September 2021 • Understanding Classroom Assessment 
• Board Improvement and Equity Plan 

October 2021 • Curriculum Expectations and Learning Goals 

December 2021 • What counts in an effective PLC? 
• Deepening our Understanding of Assessment for 

Learning – Triangulation of Evidence 

March 2022 • Co Constructing Success Criteria 
• Valid and Reliable Evidence of Learning 

May 2022 • What Counts, What Matters in a Quality PLC? 
• Destreaming Discussion 
• A Fresh Look at Grading and Reporting in Secondary 

June 2022 • Leading from the Side 
• PLC Feedback and Planning 

Indicator: Increased opportunities for leadership development of staff at all levels. 

We were happy to start the KPDSB LEAD Program this year, which offered any staff across the 
system to apply to participate in this leadership group.  LEAD participants participated in three 
sessions this year as well as had the option for financial support to put towards approved 
leadership or knowledge-building courses, workshops or learning sessions. They received 
books to help consolidate their learning from the sessions.  

Indicator: Technology to enhance teaching and learning. 

Grade 3 students across KPDSB used Lexia® Core5® Reading this school year.  Lexia Core5 
is an adaptive blended learning program that accelerates the development of literacy skills for 
students of all abilities, helping them make that critical shift from learning to read to reading to 
learn.  Teachers are notified through the program of skill areas which students require explicit 
teaching to improve their learning, and the teacher provides additional instruction in these 
areas.  Lexia Core5 is an evidence-based program, and use of it is supported by the Ministry of 
Education. 



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
2019-2024 Strategic Plan Update 

June 14, 2022  
Page 13 

 

 

Indicator: Increased opportunities for leadership development of students of all ages, 
starting as early as Kindergarten. 

KPDSB students participated in a variety of leadership opportunities, including School Climate 
Surveys and Student Senates as mentioned in this report. In addition, as a part of the CRRP 
project, Indigenous students had the opportunity to participate in Indigenous Student Voice 
Circles, with the permission of their family, at Open Roads Public School, Lilian Berg Public 
School and Sioux Mountain Public School.  The sessions were led by Len Gardner, KPDSB 
Indigenous Lead, and a support worker attended the sessions as well to ensure students were 
adequately supported during the circles.  

Truth and Reconciliation: Ensure all schools and staff are actively 
engaged in responding to the Truth and Reconciliation Commission’s 

Calls to Action. 

Indicator: All KPDSB staff receive cultural competency training. 

This year the focus was on providing cultural competency training for teachers (during PD Day 
sessions), including PARs (Secondary Department Leads), teachers of NBE3, teachers of 
destreamed math, as well as the KPDSB LEAD Leadership group.  Sessions were provided by 
Kevin Lamoureux, Niigaan Sinclair and Nick Bertrand. 

Indicator: Learning opportunities are provided for all staff and students to learn about 
the truth of Canadian history and to understand the intergenerational impacts of the 
Canadian residential school system. 

Schools provide opportunities in classrooms throughout the year by incorporating Indigenous 
voices and texts into classroom instruction, through Elder visits, by visiting former Residential 
School sites and by recognizing special days with events in the schools (National Day for Truth 
and Reconciliation/Orange Shirt Day, Treaties Recognition Week, Indigenous History month 
and National Indigenous Peoples’ Day).  A significant number of books were provided to 
elementary and secondary libraries at the beginning of this year to help provide teachers and 
students with resources to use in the classroom and for their own learning.  This month a 
KPDSB Culturally Relevant and Responsive Resource Portal will be shared out with staff 
across the system, that was developed by Indigenous Education Lead, Len Gardner, along with 
other KPDSB Central Staff. 

Indicator: Indigenous Student Trustee to provide advice to and represent student voice 
to the KPDSB Board of Trustees. 

We were pleased to work with Mackenzie Shakakeesic this year in her role as Indigenous 
Student Trustee.  Mackenzie provided voice in student forums, at Indigenous Education 
Advisory Committee meetings, at the Trustee retreat and by participating at the Board and 
Committee of the Whole meetings. 

Indicator: Every KPDSB site has a framed formal “Government of Canada Statement of 
Apology for the Residential School System” as well as learning resources to provide 
education to school communities as to why this is important. 



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
2019-2024 Strategic Plan Update 

June 14, 2022  
Page 14 

 

 

All KPDSB schools will be provided with a framed apology in September, along with sample 
lessons that teachers may use in the classroom to explain the significance of the apology.   

Indicator: Building a community of allyship by working to break down systemic barriers.  

Through the work of the schools and the Indigenous Education Advisory Committee, as well as 
work through the KPDSB Equity Committee, we continue to identify barriers that impact 
Indigenous students, families and partners.  The development of the Policy & Procedure 505: 
Indigenous Education took place this year. The intent of this policy and procedure is to 
understand that the KPDSB has a responsibility to act upon, reconcile, and be accountable to 
addressing the impacts of colonialism. It publicly states and recognizes that each student has 
the right to an education that is free from harmful dominant narratives, implicit bias, racism, and 
discrimination. It ensures that it is publicly stated that as a Public School Board, Keewatin-
Patricia District School Board believes in the inherent human dignity of all people. 

Indicator: An increase in the number of land-based teaching lessons and First Nation, 
Metis and Inuit credit course options. 

This school year, secondary schools provided 18 courses that were strategically focused on 
land-based lessons.  They took place in five of our secondary schools.  In elementary schools 
across the board, students took part in activities that invited elders and knowledge keepers into 
classrooms, out on the land or to connect virtually with students and teachers to provide 
opportunities to learn about the land from those that hold the teachings.  Connected North also 
provided learning sessions with providers who taught students about local and national land-
based teachings. 

Indicator: Enriching opportunities to learn about how Indigenous knowledge, pedagogy 
and ways of knowing have contributed to many western practices today. 

KPDSB has shared resources from the Downie Wenjack Foundation, from the First Nation, 
Metis and Inuit Education Association of Ontario, through Connected North as well as through a 
variety of texts that were placed in classrooms and libraries this year that highlighted 
Indigenous Knowledge, role models, professional and pedagogy.  Open Roads Public School 
took part in a Culturally Responsive & Relevant Math project, in conjunction with Lakehead 
University and visiting and local First Nation artists.  Students in two classrooms learned how 
loom beading demonstrated many mathematical concepts such as patterning and coding, as 
students took part in hands-on loom beading lessons. 

Indicator: Continue to build partnerships and relationships in each of the communities in 
KPDSB to increase opportunities for student and staff learning from organizations, 
Elders, Knowledge Keepers, Language Speakers and other Indigenous community 
members. 

Even during a year where COVID-19 continued to impact our schools, senior leaders, school 
administration, teachers and students had so many rich opportunities to meet with Elders, 
Knowledge Keepers, local First Nation leaders, Metis Nation of Ontario leaders, Tribal Council 
leadership, student counsellors, Education Directors, researchers, professional development 
providers, Indigenous authors, artists and more to ensure that we could continue to increase 
opportunities for student and staff learning. 



WWW.KPDSB.ON.CA 
All stakeholders create a culture of learning so that students come first. 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
2022-2023 Special Education Plan Update 

Board Meeting 
June 14, 2022 

 
 

The 2022-2023 Special Education Plan for the Keewatin-Patricia District School Board 
(KPDSB) has maintained its core structure in terms of supporting and enhancing an 
inclusive model of special education. The KPDSB prides itself on being a system that 
“puts students first” and accepts every student, new or returning. The KPDSB strives to 
provide all its students, with opportunities to develop the skills, attitudes, and knowledge 
required to achieve their full potential. The KPDSB is committed to providing optimal 
educational opportunities for all students. 

 
For students with special needs, the KPDSB is committed to: 

• providing programs and services wherever possible in “home schools”; 
• providing a range of placement options; 
• providing a focus on inclusive practices in its schools as an integral part of school 

culture; 
• developing Individual Education Plans (IEPs) which focus on improved student 

learning outcomes and on student strengths; 
• providing appropriate accommodations and modifications when required; 
• promoting respect for differences, diversity, and inclusivity; 
• promoting environments for all staff, students, parents (guardians), and 

stakeholder partners to focus on shared understandings of common goals; and 
• collaborative planning with curriculum central support staff to ensure support for 

the development of quality programs and provision of services for all students. 
 
The Special Education Plan is designed to align and support the priorities identified in 
KPDSB’s Board Improvement & Equity Plan: Student Achievement (increasing literacy 
and numeracy skills), Mental Health, Well-being & Engagement, Human Rights & 
Equity, and Pathways & Transitions. The KPDSB is focused on developing students’ 
skills, and independence and ensuring high expectations. 

 
The Special Education Plan represents the required consultation process through its 
Special Education Advisory Committee (SEAC). The Ontario Regulation, which governs 
special education in Ontario Schools, does not require formal Trustee approval; 
however, senior staff feel the necessity to ensure that the Trustees are apprised of all 
changes and updates as this document directly influences daily work. 

http://www.kpdsb.on.ca/


KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
Special Education Plan Update 

June 14, 2022 

Page 2 of 4 
WWW.KPDSB.ON.CA 

All stakeholders create a culture of learning so that students come first. 

 

 

 
 
Summary of Changes Made to the Special Education Plan 2022-2023 

 
1. The table of contents has been updated to reflect the page number changes. 

 
2. Throughout the document changes were made to the pronouns he/she, updated 

to them/they or the pupil. i.e., p. 11, and p.22. 
 

3. Updated acronyms throughout the document i.e., IPRC-Identification, Placement 
and Review Committee, IEP-Individual Education Plan, and ABA-Applied 
Behaviour Analysis. 

 
4. Updated and confirmed contact information and phone numbers. 

 
5. Added “the student” to lists where they were missing specifically around all 

parties that are involved in decisions being made i.e., p. 8. 
 

6. Ensured that we have person-first language and more inclusive language 
examples p. 8 “many students with specials needs.” p.98 physical handicap 
changed to physical disability. 

 
7. Updated wording around modifications throughout the document to align with 

current process and philosophy i.e., p. 132. 
 

8. Ensured language used throughout is strength-based and focuses on building 
skills and independence. 

 
9. Updated the roles and numbers in the roles i.e., Student Counsellors, and 

Special Education Leads. 
 

10. Section 4 - Early Identification Procedures and Intervention Strategies: updated 
to reflect the KPDSB’s work around the Science of Reading. Changed the 
wording with regards to the process around the creation of IEPs and processes 
for modifications, accommodations, and alternative programming, updated that 
all referrals are in consultation with and consent from parents/guardians i.e. p. 41 
‘At the case conference, the intervention plan and strategies would be developed 
in consultation with the parents, school team and other agencies involved with 
the care of the child to best meet the needs of the child through a strength-based 
approach.’ 

http://www.kpdsb.on.ca/


KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
Special Education Plan Update 

June 14, 2022 

Page 3 of 4 
WWW.KPDSB.ON.CA 

All stakeholders create a culture of learning so that students come first. 

 

 

 
 

11. Section 5 - The Identification, Placement and Review Committee Process and 
Appeals: updated the forms currently being used with Special Programs and 
updated to reflect IPRC data from the current school year. 

 
12. Section 6 - Individual Assessments: updated to reflect the current IEP process 

and philosophy and guidance of implementing interventions in the classroom as 
well as informal assessments prior to more formal assessments such as 
assessment from a teacher diagnostician. i.e., p. 71. If after informal 
assessments have been conducted, interventions have been implemented and 
limited progress has been made, then consideration for assessments will be 
made. All referrals need to be discussed with the Area Special Education 
Leader. 

 
13. Section 9 - Exceptionalities: ensured that definitions and criteria to identify a 

student as exceptional align with the Ministry of Education using the Special 
Education in Ontario 2018 document, i.e., removed reference to WIAT 2 as no 
longer using this. 

 
14. Section 10 - Special Education Placements Provided by the Board: Pervasive 

Development Disorder was removed as it no longer applies. 
 

15. Section 11 - Individual Education Plan- Supporting Transitions: changes were 
made to align with PPM 156 “Supporting Transitions for Students with Special 
Education Needs” as well as PPM 140- “Incorporating Methods of Applied 
Behaviour Analysis (ABA) into Programs for Students with Autism Spectrum 
Disorders.” 

 
16. Section 12 - Provincial Demonstration Schools: ensured information is recent and 

all contact information up to date. 
 

17. Section 13 - Special Education Staff – updated. 
 

18. Section 14 - Staff Development updated and added work pertaining to Inclusive 
Education as well as changed Tiered Pyramid of Intervention to Response to 
Intervention. 

 
19. Section 15 - Individual Equipment: ensured it aligns with what is found in the 

Ministry of Education Special Education Funding Guidelines Special Equipment 
Amount 2021-22, list of equipment and the professionals that write the letters of 
support for the Special Equipment Amount 

http://www.kpdsb.on.ca/


KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
Special Education Plan Update 

June 14, 2022 

Page 4 of 4 
WWW.KPDSB.ON.CA 

All stakeholders create a culture of learning so that students come first. 

 

 

 
 

20. Section 16 - Accessibility of School Buildings: updated the changes in the chart 
in consultation with the Facilities Manager. 

 
21. Section 17 - Transportation: ensure that it reflects current practice for students 

with special needs. 
 

22. Appendix A - Special Education Forms: updated to reflect the most recent 
changes and some additional forms were added. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Respectfully submitted by, 
Jennifer Bachynski, Special Education Lead 
Chantal Moore, Superintendent of Education 

http://www.kpdsb.on.ca/












































 

 
Policy Section:  Trusteeship and the Board 

 
Policy Name:  Trustee Code of Conduct 

 
200 

BOARD JUNE 14, 2022 

207 

 

Cross Reference 
Municipal Elections Act 
Education Act: 207.(1), (3) 
Broader Public Sector Procurement Directive 
Criminal Code, s.122 
Statutory Powers Procedure Act 
Policies 
322, Code of Conduct 
330, Character Development  
503, Equity & Inclusive Education 
701, Criminal Record Checks 
706, Employee Code of Conduct 
708, Respectful Working & Learning Environment  
709, Workplace Harassment 
715, Substance Use by Employees and Volunteers (Drug and Alcohol) 
716, Use of Medical Cannabis 
717, Accountability  
Procedures 
706, Employee Code of Conduct 
717, Accountability 

Date Adopted: 10/11/2020 
Date Reviewed: 12/05/2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Review By: 2026 

Page 1 of 17 

Purpose 
 
 
A Trustee is an elected position which carries with it the understanding that the electorate 
will decide at election time its support for the effectiveness of a Trustee.  At the same 
time, it is important to recognize the public trust and responsibility the collective body 
carries and that this trust and responsibility is honoured through determining and 
enforcing norms of behaviour.  
 
A Code of Conduct Policy contributes to confidence in public education and respect for 
the integrity of Trustees in the community.  It deals with acceptable and respectful 
behaviours.  
 
The Board is guided by its Vision and Values as follows:  
 
Vision: 

• The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a 
culture of learning.  

 
Values:  

• Students Come First • High Standards • Partnership 
• Innovation in Classrooms • Digital Citizenship • Inclusiveness   
• Student Achievement & Mental Health   



 

 
Policy Section:  Trusteeship and the Board 

 
Policy Name:  Trustee Code of Conduct 

 
200 

BOARD JUNE 14, 2022 

207 

 

Page 2 of 17 
 

Policy 
 
The Trustees of the Keewatin-Patricia District School Board occupy positions of public 
trust and confidence.  They are expected to discharge their duties and responsibilities in 
a professional and impartial manner.  Their behaviours are guided by integrity, 
impartiality, independence, accountability, transparency, leadership, responsiveness, 
honestly, confidentiality, legality, and respect.  As a result, every Trustee of the Board, 
including Student Trustees, shall uphold the letter and spirit of this Trustee Code of 
Conduct.  
 
Trustees have clearly defined duties and powers.  As a Board, Trustees are responsible 
for promoting student achievement and well-being, and for the effective stewardship of 
resources.  These duties and powers are outlined in the Education Act.  Trustees are 
elected to represent students, parents, and stakeholders on the Board.  This relationship 
with the electorate is governed by the Municipal Elections Act and the Education Act.  
 
This Code of Conduct is a covenant among the Trustees of the Board.  It is intended to 
instruct and guide Trustees through the challenges of public office as they undertake their 
individual and joint responsibilities.  It is meant to provide clarity regarding Trustees’ 
conduct and the management of their relationships with the Board of Trustees, staff, 
students, parents, and stakeholders in public education.  A Code of Conduct Policy 
contributes to confidence in public education and respect for the integrity of Trustees in 
the community.  
 
Definitions 
 
In this Trustee Code of Conduct, the following definitions apply:  
 
“Bias” means and includes an inclination; bent, preconceived opinion; and a 
predisposition to decide a cause or an issue in a certain way, which does not leave the 
mind perfectly open to objectively treat all matters fairly and equally.  
 
“Broder Public Sector Procurement Directive” or “BPS Procurement Directive” 
means the Broader Public Sector Procurement Directive issued by the Management 
Board of Cabinet, effective July 1, 2011, as same may be amended from time to time.  
 
“Conflict of Interest” means and includes a situation which financial or other personal 
considerations have the potential to compromise, or bias, professional judgment and 



 

 
Policy Section:  Trusteeship and the Board 

 
Policy Name:  Trustee Code of Conduct 

 
200 

BOARD JUNE 14, 2022 

207 

 

Page 3 of 17 
 

objectivity.  An apparent conflict of interest is one in which a reasonable person would 
think that the Trustee’s judgment is likely to be compromised.  
 
A conflict of interest may exist when the decisions and/or actions of Trustees, during the 
course of exercising their duties, are affected by, or perceived by, another party or person 
to be affected by the Trustee’s personal, financial, or business interests, or the personal, 
financial, or business interests of a relative, friend, and/or business associate of the 
Trustee.  
 
“Economic, Financial, or Commercial Advantage” means the receipt, or  expectation 
of receipt, of anything of value by either a Trustee of the Board, or a relative, friend, and/or 
business associate of the Trustee, resulting from a personal relationship.  
 
“Favour” means any act on the part of a Supplier for the benefit of a Trustee, or a relative, 
friend, and/or business associate of the Trustee, which may be perceived as having been 
made with a view to influencing process.  
 
“Mitigating Action” means and includes an action to avoid, minimize, reduce, eliminate, 
or rectify a conflict of interest.  
 
“Preferential Treatment” includes unfairly affording opportunities to one or more 
Suppliers at the expense of all other Suppliers that are eligible to participate in the 
opportunities.  
 
“Supplier” includes any person or organization that based on an assessment of that 
person’s or organization’s financial, technical, and commercial capacity is capable of 
fulfilling the requirements of the Board’s procurement of goods and/or services.  
 
“Supply Chain Activities” means and includes all activities directly or indirectly related 
to the Board’s planning, sourcing, procurement, moving, and payment processes.  
Budgeting, planning, and requesting, as well as the approval and processing of the 
acquisition for goods and services are all Supply Chain Activities.  
 
“Trustee” means a Trustee of the Keewatin-Patricia District School Board.  
 
 
 
 



 

 
Policy Section:  Trusteeship and the Board 

 
Policy Name:  Trustee Code of Conduct 

 
200 

BOARD JUNE 14, 2022 

207 

 

Page 4 of 17 
 

Code of Conduct 
 
 
1. Respect for Confidentiality 

 
A Trustee shall: 
 
a) Keep confidential any information disclosed or discussed at a meeting of the Board 

or committee of the Board, or part of a meeting of the Board, that was closed to 
the public (private session), and keep confidential the substance of deliberations 
of a meeting closed to the public (private session), unless require to divulge such 
information by law or authorized by the Board to do so; 

 
b) Not sure confidential information for either personal gain or to the detriment of the 

Board, a fellow Trustee, a staff person, a student or a student’s family, community 
members, or partners; 

 
c) Not divulge confidential information, including personal information about an 

identifiable individual or information subject to solicitor-client privilege that a 
Trustee becomes aware of because of their position, except when required by law 
or authorized by the Board to do so; and 

 
d) Accept that the duty of confidentiality with respect to private and confidential 

financial business and/or commercial information, personnel information, student 
information, and legal matters and opinions, survives their term as Trustee. 

 
2. Compliance with Legislation 
 

A Trustee shall:  
 

a) Ensure that student success and well-being are considered foremost; 
 

b) Fulfill their duties in accordance with the Education Act and any regulations, 
directives, or guidelines thereunder; and comply with the Municipal Freedom of 
Information and Protection of Privacy Act, and any other relevant legislation, such 
as but not limited to the Broader Public Sector Procurement Directive;  
 



 

 
Policy Section:  Trusteeship and the Board 

 
Policy Name:  Trustee Code of Conduct 

 
200 

BOARD JUNE 14, 2022 

207 

 

Page 5 of 17 
 

c) Ensure Board resources are not used for personal gain, for themselves, relatives, 
friends, and/or business associates.  Trustees recognize that such use of Board 
resources, directly or indirectly, for their personal benefit may constitute a criminal 
breach of trust contrary to s.122 of the Criminal Code (Canada); 
 

d) Accept that authority rests with the Board, and that Trustees have no authority 
other than that exercised as or delegated through the Chair of the Board; 
 

e) Respect and understand the roles and duties of the individual Trustees, Board of 
Trustees, the Director of Education, and the Chair of the Board; 
 

f) Entrust the day to day management of the Board to its staff through the Board’s 
Director of Education; and  
 

g) Uphold the letter and spirit of this Code of Conduct.  
 

3. Integrity and Dignity of Office and Civil Behaviour 
 
A Trustee shall: 
 
a) Fulfill their duties loyally, faithfully, impartially, and in a manner that will inspire the 

public confidence in the abilities and integrity of the Board; 
 

b) Recognize that the expenditure of school board funds is a public trust, and 
endeavor to ensure that the funds are expended efficiently, in the best interest of 
the students; 

 
c) Act with decorum and respect the differing points of view of other Trustees, staff, 

students, and all other stakeholders; 
 

d) Represent all constituents (with or without children in our school system) at the 
Board table;  

 
e) Respectfully explain a minority position in context of a decision; 

 
f) Respect the rights of individual Trustees while honouring the will of the majority;  

 



 

 
Policy Section:  Trusteeship and the Board 

 
Policy Name:  Trustee Code of Conduct 

 
200 

BOARD JUNE 14, 2022 

207 

 

Page 6 of 17 
 

g) Express individual opinions on issues under consideration, refraining from 
personal, demeaning, or disparaging comments; 

 
h) Render all decisions based on available facts and independent judgment; 

 
i) Carefully review all materials provided with agenda packages to prepare for 

attending and participating in meetings of the Board or committees of the Board;  
 

j) Participate in Trustee development opportunities to enhance their ability to fulfill 
their obligations as a Trustee; and  

 
k) Not advance allegations of misconduct and/or a breach of this Code of Conduct 

that are trivial, frivolous, vexatious, made in bad faith, or vindictive in nature 
against another Trustee of the Board.  

 
4. Upholding Decisions 
 

A Trustee shall: 
 
a) Accept that authority rests with the Board, and that Trustees have no authority 

other than that exercised as or delegated through the Board;  
 

b) Uphold the implementations of any Board resolution after it is passed by the 
Board; 

 
c) Be prepared to explain the rationale for any decision passed by the Board.  A 

Trustee may respectfully state their position on a resolution, provided it does not 
in any way undermine the implementation of the resolution;  

 
d) Comply with Board policies, procedures, By-laws, and Rules of Order; 

 
e) Accept the Chair of the Board as spokesperson to the public on behalf of the 

Board, unless otherwise determined by the Board.  No other Trustee shall speak 
on behalf of the Board unless expressly authorized by the Chair of the Board to 
do so; and 

 
f) Monitor the decisions and direction of the board in accordance with the Education 

Act and applicable law.  



 

 
Policy Section:  Trusteeship and the Board 

 
Policy Name:  Trustee Code of Conduct 

 
200 

BOARD JUNE 14, 2022 

207 

 

Page 7 of 17 
 

 
5. Conflict of Interest 

 
A Trustee shall:  
 
a) In all situations where a Trustee or their spouse, child, or parent has a pecuniary 

interest in a matter before the Board, declare a conflict of interest, disclose the 
general nature of the interest, and abstain from discussions and voting with 
respect to that issue.  Where such conflict of interest arises during an in-camera 
session of the Board, the Trustee must absent themselves from the room during 
discussion and deliberation of the issue for which they have a conflict;  
 

b) Avoid conflicts of interest as defined by this Code of Conduct, as well as the 
Broader Public Sector Procurement Directive; 

 
c) If involved in Supply Chain Activities, declare actual or potential conflicts of 

interest.  Where a conflict arises, it is to be evaluated and an appropriate mitigating 
action is to be taken; 

 
d) Be responsible and accountable for exercising good judgment and avoiding 

situations that might present a conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict 
of interest.  Where a conflict of interest might exist, each Trustee has an affirmative 
duty to disclose such conflict when it becomes apparent; 

 
e) Not sure their position, authority, or influence for personal, financial, or material 

gain or personal business purposes of for the personal, financial, or material gain 
or business purposes of a relative, friend, and/or business associate.  A Trustee 
shall not use their office to advance the Trustee’s interests or interests of any 
family member, or person, or organization with whom or with which, the Trustee 
is related or associated; 

 
f) Not sue their position to obtain employment within the Board for the Trustee, or a 

family member; and  
 

g) Not accept a gift from any person or entity that has dealings with the Board if a 
reasonable person might conclude that the gift could influence the Trustee when 
performing their duties of the Board.  

 



 

 
Policy Section:  Trusteeship and the Board 

 
Policy Name:  Trustee Code of Conduct 

 
200 

BOARD JUNE 14, 2022 

207 

 

Page 8 of 17 
 

Enforcement of Code of Conduct  
 
1. Identifying a Breach of the Code 
 

A Trustee who has reasonable grounds to believe that a Trustee of the Board has 
breached the Board’s Code of Conduct may bring the alleged breach to the attention 
of the Board through the Chair or Vice-Chair of the Board.  The Code of Conduct 
applies equally to the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Board.  In the case of an allegation 
of a breach of Code of Conduct by the Chair, wherever a process requires action by 
the Chair, it shall be modified to read the Vice-Chair or alternate.  
 
Any allegation of a breach of the Code must be brought to the attention of the Chair 
or Vice-Chair of the Board no later than six (6) weeks after the breach comes to the 
knowledge of the Trustee reporting the breach.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, in no 
circumstance shall an inquiry into a breach of the Code be undertaken after the 
expiration of six (6) months from the time the contravention is alleged to have 
occurred.  
 
Any allegation of a breach of the Code of Conduct shall be investigated following the 
Informal or Formal Complain Procedures below, as the case may be. 
 
It is expected that wherever possible, allegations of a breach of the Code of Conduct 
by a Trustee shall be investigated following the Informal Complaint Procedure.  It is 
recognized that from time to time a contravention of the Code may occur that is trivial, 
or committed through inadvertence, or an error of judgment made in good faith.  In 
the spirit of collegiality and the best interests of the Board, the first purpose of alerting 
a Trustee to a breach of the Code is to assist the Trustee in understanding their 
obligations under the Code.  Only serious and/pr reoccurring breaches of the Code 
by a Trustee should be investigated following the Formal Complaint Procedure. 

 
2. Chair/Presiding Officer (Decision Point – Chair or Committee of the Board) 

 
The Code of Conduct applies equally to the Chair of the Board.  In the case of an 
allegation of a breach of the Code by the Chair, wherever a process requires action 
by the Chair, it shall be modified to reach the Vice-Chair of the Board.  
 
Each year, two (2) alternate Trustees shall be chosen by the Board to be used when 
the circumstances warrant that one, or both, Trustees are needed in place of the 



 

 
Policy Section:  Trusteeship and the Board 

 
Policy Name:  Trustee Code of Conduct 

 
200 

BOARD JUNE 14, 2022 

207 

 

Page 9 of 17 
 

Chair and/or Vice-Chair of the Board to carry out any of the duties required under this 
Code of Conduct and Enforcement.  In no circumstances shall the Trustee who 
brought the complaint of a breach of the Code of Conduct be involved in conducting 
any Formal inquiry into the complaint, nor shall the Trustee who is the respondent.  
 
Nothing in this Code prevents the Chair or Presiding Officer of any meeting of the 
Board or committee of the Board, from exercising their power pursuant to s.207(3) of 
the Education Act to expel or exclude from any meeting any person who has been 
guilty of improper conduct at the meeting.  For greater certainty, this may be done at 
the sole discretion of the Chair or Presiding Officer, as the case may be, and without 
the necessity of a complaint or conducting an inquiry before an expulsion or exclusion 
from a meeting.  The rationale for this provision is that a Chair or Presiding Officer 
must have the ability to control a meeting.  Any Trustee who does not abide by a 
reasonable expulsion or exclusion from a meeting is deemed to have breached this 
Code.  
 
The Chair of the Board or Presiding Officer of any meeting of the Board or committee 
of the Board shall exercise their powers in a fair and impartial manner having due 
regard for every Trustees’ opinion or views.  
 
The Chair of the Board or Presiding Officer shall follow the special Rules of Order of 
the Board and/or the adopted Riles of Order and meeting procedures contained in a 
Policy or By-law of the Board.  A breach of a Rule of Order should be dealt with at the 
meeting in a question by a Trustee rising to a point of order or appealing a ruling of 
the Chair in accordance with any applicable Rule of Order.  Once such a motion is 
dealt with by the Board of Trustees, all Trustees shall abide by that decision and no 
further action shall be undertaken pursuant to the Enforcement of the Code of 
Conduct, except for persistent improper use of the applicable Rules of Order by the 
Chair or Presiding Officer.  

 
3. Informal Complaint Procedure 
 

The Chair of the Board, following discussion with Executive, or at the request of a 
Trustee of the Board (without necessity of providing a formal written complaint) who 
alleges a breach of the Code has occurred, may meet informally with a Trustee of the 
Board who is alleged to have breached the Code, to discuss the breach.  The purpose 
of the meeting is to bring the allegation of the breach to the attention of the Trustee 



 

 
Policy Section:  Trusteeship and the Board 

 
Policy Name:  Trustee Code of Conduct 

 
200 

BOARD JUNE 14, 2022 

207 

 

Page 10 of 17 
 

and to discuss remedial measures to correct the offending behaviour.  The Informal 
Complaint Procedure is conducted in private.  
 
The remedial measures may include, for example, a warning, an apology, and/or the 
requirement of the Trustee to engage in the successful completion of professional 
development training such as that offered by the Ontario Education Services 
Corporation Professional Development Program for School Board Trustees.  If the 
Chair of the Board and the Trustee alleged to have breached this Code cannot agree 
on a remedy, then a formal complaint may be brought against the Trustee alleged to 
have breached this Code, and that complaint will be dealt with in accordance with the 
Formal Complaint Procedure below.  

 
4. Formal Complaint Procedure 
 

A Trustee who has reasonable grounds to believe that another Trustee of the Board 
has breached the Board’s Code of Conduct, may bring the breach to the attention of 
the Board by first providing to the Chair of the Board a written signed complaint setting 
out the following:  
 
a) The name of the Trustee who is alleged to have breached the Code; 

 
b) The alleged breach or breaches of the Code; 

 
c) Information as to when the breach came to the Trustee’s attention; 

 
d) The grounds for the belief by the Trustee that a breach of the Code has occurred; 

and  
 

e) The names and contact information of any witnesses to the breach, or any other 
persons who have relevant information, regarding the alleged breach.  Except as 
provided below, if a written complaint is filed with the Chair of the Board, then a 
formal inquiry shall be undertaken, unless the complainant subsequently 
withdraws the complaint or agrees that the complaint may be dealt with in 
accordance with the Informal Complaint Procedure.  

 

In an election year for Trustees, a Code of Conduct Complaint respecting a Trustee 
who is seeking re-election shall not be brought during the period commencing two (2) 



 

 
Policy Section:  Trusteeship and the Board 

 
Policy Name:  Trustee Code of Conduct 

 
200 

BOARD JUNE 14, 2022 

207 

 

Page 11 of 17 
 

months prior to election day and ending after the first Board meeting after the new 
term of office of the Board commences, unless the claim is in the public interest.  If 
the Trustee accused of a breach of the Code is not re-elected, no inquiry by the Board 
into the alleged breach of the Code by that Trustee shall be undertaken.  The 
limitation period for bringing a complaint shall be extended as necessary.  
 
The Chair of the Board shall provide to all Trustees of the Board, a confidential copy 
of the complaint within ten (10) days of receiving it.  The complaint, any response to 
the complaint, and the investigation of the complaint shall be confidential until it is 
before the Board of Trustees for a decision as to whether or not the Trustee has 
breached this Code.  

 
5. Refusal to Conduct a Formal Inquiry 
 

If the Executive Committee of the Board are of the opinion that the complaint is out 
of time, trivial, frivolous, vexatious, or not made in good faith, or that there are no 
grounds or insufficient grounds for a formal inquiry, they shall prepare a confidential 
report to all the Trustees of the Board stating their opinion and the rationale for it.  The 
Trustee who is alleged to have breached the Code of Conduct shall not vote on the 
resolution.  If the opinion is adopted by the Board of Trustees, a formal inquiry shall 
not be conducted.  
 
If an allegation of a breach of the Code of Conduct on its face is with respect to the 
non-compliance with a more specific Board Policy with a separate complaint 
procedure, the allegation shall be processed under that procedure.  
 
If a complaint is deemed to be frivolous or vexatious, the Trustee who brought the 
complaint is subject to sanctions outlined in section 9 of this policy.  

 
6. Steps of Formal Inquiry 
 

If a formal inquiry of an allegation of a breach of the Code of Conduct is undertaken, 
it shall be done by the Executive Committee of the Board, if appropriate, or any three 
(3) of the Chair, Vice-Chair, and the alternate Trustee(s), or by an outside consultant 
chosen by the Executive Committee of the Board.  
 
Regardless of who undertakes the formal inquiry, the following steps shall be 
followed:  



 

 
Policy Section:  Trusteeship and the Board 

 
Policy Name:  Trustee Code of Conduct 

 
200 

BOARD JUNE 14, 2022 

207 

 

Page 12 of 17 
 

 
a) The Statutory Powers Procedure Act does not apply to anything done regarding 

the Enforcement of this Code of Conduct.  No formal trial-type hearing will be 
conducted.  
 

b) Procedural fairness shall govern the formal inquiry.  The formal inquiry will be 
conducted in private.  

 
c) The formal inquiry may involve both written and oral statements by any witnesses, 

the Trustee bringing the complaint, and the Trustee who is alleged to have 
breached the Code of Conduct.  

 
d) The Trustee who is alleged to have breached the Code of Conduct shall have an 

opportunity to respond to the allegations both in a private meeting with the 
person(s) undertaking the formal inquiry and in writing.  

 
e) It is expected that the formal inquiry will be conducted within ninety (90) calendar 

days of the receipt of the written response to the complaint.  If a longer period of 
time is required to complete the inquiry, the reason for the extension shall be 
explained in the final report to the Board.  The Trustee who is alleged to have 
breached the Code of Conduct shall provide a written response to the allegations 
within ten (10) days of receiving the written allegation, or such extended period of 
the time as the investigators deem appropriate in the circumstance.  

 
f) If the Trustee who is alleged to have breached the Code of Conduct refuses to 

participate in the formal inquiry, the formal inquiry will continue in their absence.  
 

g) The final report shall outline the finding of facts and a recommendation or opinion 
as to whether the Code of Conduct has been breached.  

 
h) If the Executive Committee of the Board, when conducting the formal inquiry, 

cannot agree on the final findings of facts, it shall be referred to an outside 
investigator to complete the formal inquiry.  

 
7. Suspension of Formal Inquiry 

 
If the investigators, when conducting the formal inquiry, discover that the subject 
matter of the formal inquiry is being investigated by police, that a charge has been 



 

 
Policy Section:  Trusteeship and the Board 

 
Policy Name:  Trustee Code of Conduct 

 
200 

BOARD JUNE 14, 2022 

207 

 

Page 13 of 17 
 

laid, or is being dealt with in accordance with a procedure established under another 
Act, the formal inquiry shall be suspended until the police investigation, charge, or 
matter under another Act has been finally disposed of.  This shall be reported to the 
rest of the Board of Trustees.  

 
8. Decision 
 

The final report shall be delivered to the Board of Trustees, and a decision by the 
Board of Trustees as to whether or not the Code of Conduct has been breached and 
the sanction, if any, for the breach shall be made as soon as practical after receipt of 
the final report by the Board.  
 
Trustees shall consider only the findings in the final report when voting on the decision 
and sanction.  No Trustee shall undertake their own investigation of the matter.  
 
If the Board of Trustees determine that there has been no breach of the Code of 
Conduct, or that a contravention occurred although the Trustee took all reasonable 
measures to prevent it, or that a contravention occurred that was trivial, or committed 
through inadvertence, or an error of judgement made in good faith, no sanction shall 
be imposed.  
 
The determination of a breach of the Code of Conduct and the imposition of a sanction 
with respect to a complaint investigated in accordance with the Formal Complaint 
Procedure must be done by resolution of the Board at a meeting of the Board, and the 
vote on the resolution shall be open to the public.  The resolutions shall be recorded 
in the minutes of the meeting.  The reasons for the decision shall be recorded in the 
minutes of the meeting.  Both resolutions shall be decided by a majority of the Trustees 
of the Board present and voting.  
 
Despite s.207(1) of the Education Act, the part of the meeting of the Board during 
which a breach, or alleged breach, of the Board’s Code of Conduct is considered may 
be closed to the public when the breach, or alleged breach, involves any of the matters 
described in clauses 207(2) (a) to (e), being: 
 
a) The security of the property of the Board;  

 



 

 
Policy Section:  Trusteeship and the Board 

 
Policy Name:  Trustee Code of Conduct 

 
200 

BOARD JUNE 14, 2022 

207 

 

Page 14 of 17 
 

b) The disclosure of intimate, personal, or financial information in respect of a 
member of the Board or committee, an employee or prospective employee of the 
Board, or a pupil or their parent(s) or guardian(s); 
 

c) The acquisition or disposal of a school site;  
 

d) Decisions in respect of negotiations with employees of the Board; or 
 

e) Litigation affecting the Board.  
 

The Trustee who is alleged to have breached the Code of Conduct shall not vote on a 
resolution to determine whether or nor there is a breach or the imposition of a sanction.  
The Trustee who brought the complaint to the attention of the Board may not vote on 
those resolutions.  
 
The Trustee who is alleged to have breached the Code of Conduct may be present 
during the deliberations regarding the above, but shall not participate in the 
deliberations, and shall not be required to answer any questions at that meeting.  
 
The Trustee who is alleged to have breached the Code of Conduct shall not in any 
way, after the final report is completed, influence the vote on the decision of breach or 
sanction, except as permitted below after these decisions have been made.  

 
9. Sanctions 
 

If the Board determines that the Trustee has breached the Board’s Code of Conduct 
the Board may impose one or more of the following sanctions:  
 
a) Censure of the Trustee; 

 
b) Barring the Trustee from attending all, or part of, a meeting of the Board or a 

meeting of the committee of the Board.  Where a Trustee is appointed to represent 
the interests of Indigenous students, consideration of the role of First Nation’s 
Trustee when imposing any sanction for a breach of the Code of Conduct should 
be considered, including items to be considered at meetings of the Board; and/or 
 



 

 
Policy Section:  Trusteeship and the Board 

 
Policy Name:  Trustee Code of Conduct 

 
200 

BOARD JUNE 14, 2022 

207 

 

Page 15 of 17 
 

c) Barring the member from sitting on one or more committees of the Board, for the 
period of time specified by the Board.  Where a Trustee who is appointed to 
represent the interests of Indigenous students, the Trustee shall not be barred from 
attending IEAC meetings, except under exceptional circumstances. 

 
The Board shall not impose a sanction which is more onerous than the above but may 
impose one that is less onerous such as a warming or requirement that the Trustee 
successfully complete specified professional development courses at the expense of 
the Board.  The Board has no power to declare a Trustee’s seat vacant.  
 
A Trustee who is barred from attending all or part of a meeting of the Board or a 
meeting of a committee of the Board is not entitled to receive any materials that relate 
to that meeting or that part of the meeting and that are not available to members of the 
public.  
 
The imposition of a sanction barring a Trustee from attending all or part of a meeting 
of the Board shall be deemed to be authorization for the Trustee to be absent from the 
meeting and therefore, not in violation of the Education Act regarding absences from 
meetings.  

 
10. Reconsideration 

 
If the Board determines that a Trustee has breached the Board’s Code of Conduct, 
the Board shall:  
 
a) Give the Trustee written notice of the determination, the reasons for the decision, 

and any sanction imposed by the Board;  
 

b) The notice shall inform the Trustee that they may make written submissions to the 
Board in respect of the determination or sanction by the date specified in the notice 
that is at least fourteen (14) days after the notice is received by the Trustee; and  
 

c) Consider any submissions made by the Trustee and shall confirm or revoke the 
determination or sanction within fourteen (14) days after the submissions are 
received.  

 
If the Board revokes a determination, any sanction imposed by the Board is revoked.  
 



 

 
Policy Section:  Trusteeship and the Board 

 
Policy Name:  Trustee Code of Conduct 

 
200 

BOARD JUNE 14, 2022 

207 

 

Page 16 of 17 
 

If the Board confirms a determination, the Board shall, within the fourteen (14) days 
above, confirm, vary, or revoke the sanction.  
 
If a sanction is varied or revoked, the variation or revocation shall be deemed to be 
effective as of the date the original determination was made.  
 
The Board decisions to confirm or revoke a determination or confirm, vary, or revoke 
a sanction shall be done by resolution at a meeting of the Board, and the vote on the 
resolution shall be open to the public.  Both resolutions shall be decided by a vote of 
at least two thirds (2/3) of the Trustees present and voting.  The resolutions shall be 
recoded in the minutes of the meeting, together with the reasons for confirming or 
revoking a determination.  The Board shall provide to the Trustee, alleged to have 
breached the Code of Conduct, written notice of the decision to confirm or revoke the 
determination together with reasons for the decision and written notice of any decision 
to confirm, vary, or revoke a sanction.  The Trustee alleged to have breached the 
Code of Conduct shall not vote on those resolutions.  The Trustee who brought the 
complaint may not vote.  
 
The Trustee who is alleged to have breached the Code of Conduct may be present 
during the deliberations regarding the above, but may not participate in the 
deliberations, and shall not be required to answer any questions at that meeting. 
 
If appropriate, the original sanction may be stayed pending the consideration by the 
Board of the determination or sanction.  

 
Director of Education  
 
 
The Director of Education shall provide Trustees with a copy of this code, and copies of 
the documents referred to herein and upon which it relies, in a timely fashion so that they 
may be read and understood prior to signing this document.  
 
The Director of Education shall ensure that each Trustee signs this document when being 
sworn into office.  
 
The Director of Education shall ensure an opportunity for training on this Code of Conduct 
is provided for Trustees near the beginning of each Trustee’s term of office.  



 

 
Policy Section:  Trusteeship and the Board 

 
Policy Name:  Trustee Code of Conduct 

 
200 

BOARD JUNE 14, 2022 

207 

 

Page 17 of 17 
 

Acknowledgement and Undertaking  
 
 
As a Trustee of the Board, I shall uphold this Code of Conduct.  
I confirm that I have read, understand, and agree to abide by the Board’s Code of 
Conduct, Policies, and By-Laws and the Enforcement Procedures.  
 
 
Date: ____________ 
 
 
    Signature: ________________________________ 
 
 
    Please Print Name: _________________________ 
 
 
 
Witness Signature: _____________________________________ 
 
 
Please Print Witness Name: ______________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

 



 
 

Board Meeting 
 

June 14, 2022 
 

Respectfully submitted by: 
Richard Findlay, Superintendent of Business 

Natalie Pearson, Finance Manager 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Analysis of 2022-23 Estimates 
  



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
2022-23 DRAFT Estimates 

June 14, 2022 
Page 1 

 
Introduction 

All dollar amounts referenced are in thousands (000) of Canadian dollars unless otherwise noted. 
The budgeting process starts with enrolment projections, which are the primary driver of our 
funding. The senior leadership team then determines how the funds will be allocated based on 
student achievement needs and alignment to the board’s goals identified in the Strategic Plan. 
The 2022-23 Estimates resulted in a balanced budget for Ministry of Education compliance 
purposes. Since we have a balanced compliance budget, we do not require Ministry approval 
prior to Board approval. 
The 22-23 Estimates also show an in-year deficit of $647 on a Public Sector Accounting Board 
(PSAB) basis. The difference between PSAB deficit and the Compliance balanced budget is due 
to a negative adjustment for amortization of committed capital projects. 
Table 1 in APPENDIX A shows the calculation of the PSAB and Compliance surplus (deficit) for 
the 22-23 Estimates, the 21-22 Revised Estimates, and the 20-21 Actuals. 

Revenues 

Total revenues for 22-23 are projected to increase by $2.6 Million (2.5%) compared to the 21-22 
Revised Estimates. Table 2 in APPENDIX A provides a breakdown by revenue category. 
Grants for Student Needs (GSN) funding increased by $4 million (5.9%) over the 21-22 Revised 
Estimates. Most of the increase was due to increased enrolment and an increase of 2.7% in 
average per-pupil funding There was also an additional $1.1 million in Covid-19 funding for 
temporary additional staffing to support learning recovery and maintaining enhanced cleaning 
standards. We have flexibility in how we use these funds based on local needs but cannot use 
them for Covid-19 supplies. For 22-23 this funding has been allocated as follows: 

Temporary Custodians (16.38 FTE) $789 
Supply Teachers 243 
Long Term Occ Teachers (Virtual: 2 x 0.5 FTE)      117 
   Total $1,149 

Other Provincial Grants includes Priority and Partnerships Fund (PPF) funding. This is additional 
funding outside the GSN for targeted investments to directly support students in the classroom 
with accountable, time-limited funding. For 22-23, the Ministry has already announced PPFs 
totaling almost $2.5 million to promote learning recovery, positive mental health, and the growth 
and development of our KPDSB students, including: 

Rapid Response Northern Schools Team $800 
Math Strategy 446 
Tutoring Supports  370 
Indigenous Grad Coach  346 
First Nation School Supports Program  210 
Special Education Needs in Math & Summer Learning 195 
Other Supports      88 
   Total $2,455 



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
2022-23 DRAFT Estimates 

June 14, 2022 
Page 2 

 
Federal Grants and Fees have increased by 1.8% based on the Average Daily Enrolment (ADE) 
of Other Pupils of the Board (OPB) projected for 22-23. Most of this revenue is generated by 
tuition-paying students from First Nation communities that attend schools in our district. 
Other Fees and Revenues includes amounts from the Dryden Training Centre and 
reimbursements for staff Secondments to other organizations. 

Deferred Capital Contribution is the amount taken into revenue to cover supported amortization 
on capital expenditures. This is how we expense the amortization of our assets over time. The 
cash to purchase the assets has already been flowed to the board by the Ministry of Education. 

Operating Expenses 

Total operating expenses are projected at $105.5 million in 22-23, an increase of $2.7 million 
(2.6%) from 21-22 Revised Estimates. Table 3A in APPENDIX A provides a breakdown by 
expense “function”. 

Administration expenditures are up $128 (2.4%). Most of this is due to an increase in 
administrative staffing to address needs and succession planning. 

Transportation costs are up $1 million (16.6%) due to increased contract costs with bus operators 
for home to school transportation. 

Pupil Accommodation is up $1.4 million (8.4%) due to an increase in amortization expenses on 
building additions and capital improvements. 
 
Table 3B in APPENDIX A shows that breakdown of operating expenses by “object”. 
 
Salaries and Benefits are up by $1.6 million (2.1%), mostly due to an increase in instructional staff 
($1.2 million) and administrative staff to address needs and succession planning ($300). 
 
Amortization of Capital Assets increased by $1 million (14.1%) due to an increase in capital 
improvements and capital assets. 
 
Rental, Fees, and Contract expenditures are up $577 (6.3%), mostly due to the increase in 
contracts with bus operators for home to school transportation for students. 
 
Other Expenses decreased by $394 (28.7%) because we are no longer allowed to budget for 
Covid-19 supplies. In 21-22 we spent just over $400 on Covid-19 supplies for Transportation 
($334) and School Operations ($100). 

Capital Expenditures 

Major capital expenditures for 22-23 include the deficiency rectification at Sioux North High School 
($2.7 million) and the HVAC upgrades at New Prospect PS ($2.5 Million). Beaver Brae also has 
capital projects worth about $3.2 million to address accessibility issues, roof replacement, and 
civil drainage. Child Care planning at both Ignace and Lillian Berg schools ($1.7 million) are also 
include in the budget. See Table 4 in APPENDIX A for a complete list of the planned capital 
expenditures for 22-23.  



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
2022-23 DRAFT Estimates 

June 14, 2022 
Page 3 

 
 
Enrolment 

The Board’s Average Daily Enrolment (ADE) projection for 22-23 is 4,651.75 students. See 
Tables 5, 6, and 7 in APPENDIX A for projected ADE breakdowns and head counts by school 
and by grade. 
Elementary enrolment will remain stable with a projected decrease of 18.5 students (a change of 
less than 1%). Open Roads PS will see the biggest enrolment decline (56 students, or 13.4%). 
Secondary ADE will increase by 89.5 (5.3%) students compared to 21-22. Red Lake DHS will see 
an increase of thirty students (14.6%) due to a large incoming Grade 9 cohort. 

Staffing 
 
Table 8 in APPENDIX A shows an overall staffing increase of 17.4 FTE positions compared to 
the 21-22 Revised Estimates. Most staffing increases are in the classroom and schools. Overall, 
72% of all expenditures are related to staff salaries and benefits. 
Secondary teachers increased by 7.3 FTE (5.3%) and Education Assistants increased by 7.0 FTE 
(5%) over 21-22 Revised Estimates. The increase in the Secondary panel reflects the increased 
enrolment projected for 22-23. The increase in Education Assistants is due to additional positions 
created through Jordan’s Principle funding. 
The Coordinators-Tchrs&P/VP line includes an Itinerant Trades Teacher, Rapid Response 
Northern Support Team members, and central Special Assignment Teachers (SATs). 
Custodial/Maint-Schools remained stable. We will continue to backfill daytime custodians in 22-
23 with temporary custodial staff for the evening shift. This will allow for enhanced cleaning 
protocols in all our schools during the day to help ensure the safety of our students and staff for 
the duration of the pandemic. 
The Other line includes recoverable salary positions for Secondments (2.0 FTE), the Dryden 
Training Centre Events Coordinator position (1.0 FTE), and Bargaining Unit representatives (3.3 
FTE). 

Budget Risks 

There are a variety of risks that could cause the Board to fail to achieve the results projected in 
the approved budget. The risks are similar each year. A summary of these risks and our strategies 
to mitigate these risks is in Table 9 in APPENDIX A.  



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
2022-23 DRAFT Estimates 

June 14, 2022 
Page 4 

 
APPENDIX A 
 
Table 1 
Summary Statement of Operations 

 
 

Table 2 
Consolidated Revenues 

 
 

Table 3A 
Operating Expenses by Function 

 
  

2022-23 2022-23 2021-22 2021-22 2020-21 2020-21
Estimates Estimates RevEstimates RevEstimates Actuals Actuals

PSAB Compliance PSAB Compliance PSAB Compliance
Total Revenue 104,813           104,223           102,207           100,644           102,830           102,266        
Total Expenses 105,460           104,223           102,804           100,644           98,483             98,588          
Annual Surplus (Deficit) (647)                 -                       (596)                 -                      4,347               3,678            
Opening Accum Surplus 27,531             23,615             28,610             24,754             31,025             28,518          
Ending Accum Surplus 26,884             23,615             28,013             24,754             35,372             32,196          

2022-23 Est 2022-23 Est
to 2021-22 to 2021-22

2022-23 2021-22 2020-21 RevEstimates RevEstimates
Revenue Estimates RevEstimates Actuals $ %
Grants for Student Needs 71,878             67,857             67,750             4,021               5.9%
Other Provincial Grants 2,698               4,249               5,876               (1,551)             -36.5%
Local Taxation 13,906             13,906             14,055             -                      0.0%
School Generated Funds 590                  1,563               565                  (973)                -62.3%
Federal Grants and Fees 7,043               6,917               6,476               127                  1.8%
Investment Income -                       -                       10                    -                      
Other School Bds' Revenue 160                  248                  13                    (88)                  -35.6%
Other Fees and Revenues 1,361               1,265               1,722               96                    7.6%
Deferred Capital Contrib'n 7,177               6,202               6,364               975                  15.7%
TOTAL REVENUE 104,813           102,207           102,830           2,605               2.5%

2022-23 Est 2022-23 Est
to 2021-22 to 2021-22

2022-23 2021-22 2020-21 RevEstimates RevEstimates
Expenses Estimates RevEstimates Actuals $ %
Instruction 72,537             71,495             69,364             1,042               1.5%
Administration 5,542               5,414               5,282               128                  2.4%
Transportation 7,117               6,105               4,748               1,013               16.6%
Pupil Accommodation 18,455             17,023             16,642             1,431               8.4%
School Generated Funds 590                  1,563               694                  (973)                -62.3%
Other Expenses 1,219               1,203               1,754               16                    1.3%
TOTAL EXPENSES 105,460           102,804           98,483             2,656               2.6%



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
2022-23 DRAFT Estimates 

June 14, 2022 
Page 5 

 
 
Table 3B 
Operating Expenses by Object 
 

 
 

Table 4 
Capital Expenditures 
 

 
  

2022-23 Est 2022-23 Est
to 2021-22 to 2021-22

2022-23 2021-22 2020-21 RevEstimates RevEstimates
Expenses Estimates RevEstimates Actuals $ %
Salaries & Benefits 75,693             74,128             72,458             1,565               2.1%
ProfDev, Supplies, Services 9,983               10,033             8,477               (50)                  -0.5%
Amort'n of Capital Assets 8,505               7,456               7,586               1,049               14.1%
Interest Charges on Capital 625                  716                  825                  (90)                  -12.6%
Rental, Fees, Contracts 9,673               9,096               7,229               577                  6.3%
Other Expenses 980                  1,374               1,909               (394)                -28.7%
TOTAL EXPENSES 105,460           102,804           98,483             2,656               2.6%

School Description Amount Funding Source

Sioux North HS Deficiency Completion 2,713    SNHS Surplus / Board Surplus

New Prospect HVAC 2,500    School Condition Improvement (SCI)

Beaver Brae Accessibility 2,000    School Condition Improvement (SCI)

Beaver Brae Roofing Replacement 1,000    School Condition Improvement (SCI)

Red Lake DHS Civil Drainage & Accessibility 965       School Renewal

Ignace Child Care Planning 909       Child Care Capital Grant

Lillian Berg Child Care Planning 856       Child Care Capital Grant

Dryden RTCC Roofing Replacement 600       School Condition Improvement (SCI)

Ear Falls PS Major Renewal Project - Landscaping 500       School Condition Improvement (SCI)

System Automatic flushing elementary schools 500       School Condition Improvement (SCI)

Crolancia SS Energy Efficiency - Backup Utilities 310       Crolancia Surplus

Sioux Narrows Roof Replacement 250       School Condition Improvement (SCI)

Dryden HS M&E Commissioning 250       School Condition Improvement (SCI)

Beaver Brae Civil Drainage & Accessibility 222       School Condition Improvement (SCI)

Red Lake-Madsen Civil Drainage & Accessibility 215       School Condition Improvement (SCI)

   Total 13,790  



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
2022-23 DRAFT Estimates 

June 14, 2022 
Page 6 

 
Table 5 
Enrolment Summary 

 

Table 6 
Projected ADE by School 

 
  

2022-23 Est 2022-23 Est
to 2021-22 to 2021-22

2022-23 2021-22 2020-21 RevEstimates RevEstimates
Avg Daily Enrolment Estimates RevEstimates Actuals # %
Elementary 2,860.00 2,878.50 2,794.75 -18.50 -0.6%
Secondary 1,791.75 1,702.27 1,688.02 89.48 5.3%
TOTAL 4,651.75 4,580.77 4,482.77 70.98 1.5%

2022-23 Est 2022-23 Est
to 2021-22 to 2021-22

2022-23 2021-22 2020-21 RevEstimates RevEstimates
School Estimates RevEstimates Actuals # %
Beaver Brae Elem 238.00                232.00                6.00                     2.6%
Crolancia Elem 65.00                   65.00                   -                      0.0%
Ear Falls 97.00                   97.00                   -                      0.0%
Evergreen 129.00                130.00                (1.00)                   -0.8%
Golden Learning Ctr 185.00                187.00                (2.00)                   -1.1%
Ignace 106.00                101.00                5.00                     5.0%
Keewatin 151.00                139.00                12.00                  8.6%
King George VI 255.00                265.00                (10.00)                 -3.8%
Lillian Berg 79.00                   83.00                   (4.00)                   -4.8%
New Prospect 299.00                284.00                15.00                  5.3%
Open Roads 362.00                418.00                (56.00)                 -13.4%
Red Lake - Madsen 167.00                157.50                9.50                     6.0%
Savant Lake 7.00                     7.00                     -                      0.0%
Sioux Mountain 321.00                324.00                (3.00)                   -0.9%
Sioux Narrows 48.00                   43.00                   5.00                     11.6%
Upsala 11.00                   11.00                   -                      0.0%
Valleyview 340.00                335.00                5.00                     1.5%
   Elementary Total 2,860.00             2,878.50             -                       (18.50)                 -0.6%
Beaver Brae SS 460.50                441.00                19.50                  4.4%
Crolancia HS 22.25                   20.13                   2.12                     10.5%
Dryden HS 544.50                523.64                20.86                  4.0%
Ignace HS 53.00                   51.50                   1.50                     2.9%
Red Lake DHS 235.00                205.00                30.00                  14.6%
Sioux North HS 476.50                461.00                15.50                  3.4%
   Secondary Total 1,791.75             1,702.27             -                       89.48                  5.3%
Board total 4,651.75             4,580.77             -                       70.98                  1.5%



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
2022-23 DRAFT Estimates 

June 14, 2022 
Page 7 

 
Table 7 
Projected October 2022 Head Count by School by Grade 

 
  

Elementary
School/Grade JK K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 Total
Beaver Brae 111       127       238       
Crolancia 3           9           6           3           10         8           8           5           8           5           65         
Ear Falls 9           11         11         11         7           10         9           5           9           15         97         
Evergreen 12         7           16         15         16         19         24         20         129       
GLC 20         18         20         18         18         13         22         23         14         19         185       
Ignace 12         11         6           11         11         11         10         16         11         7           106       
Keewatin 20         20         18         29         16         21         18         9           151       
King George VI 35         37         29         38         31         26         32         27         255       
Lillian Berg 5           7           5           9           12         11         4           10         7           9           79         
New Prospect 30         32         32         34         30         36         29         23         31         22         299       
Open Roads 30         29         35         31         34         35         34         40         43         51         362       
Red Lake-Madsen 12         18         21         20         15         15         19         12         21         14         167       
Savant Lake 1           -            1           1           2           -            1           -            1           -            7           
Sioux Mountain 30         33         27         30         30         30         42         34         40         25         321       
Sioux Narrows 7           6           12         8           5           3           4           3           48         
Upsala -            1           2           -            -            2           -            1           3           2           11         
Valleyview 42         46         46         39         39         41         44         43         340       
ELEM TOTAL 268       285       287       297       276       281       300       271       299       296       2,860    

Secondary
School/Grade 9 10 11 12 Total
Beaver Brae SS 103       123       108       157       491       
Crolancia 5           7           5           7           24         
Dryden HS 135       140       112       179       566       
Ignace HS 15         14         13         11         53         
Red Lake DHS 68         47         61         66         242       
Sioux North HS 100       110       111       171       492       
SEC TOTAL 435       451       421       603       1,868    



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
2022-23 DRAFT Estimates 

June 14, 2022 
Page 8 

 
Table 8 
Staffing 

 
  

2022-23 Est 2022-23 Est
to 2021-22 to 2021-22

2022-23 2021-22 2020-21 RevEstimates RevEstimates
EFIS Appendix H October 31 Estimates Rev Estimates Actuals FTE %
Classroom Teachers-Elem 210.7                   215.9                   225.2                   (5.2)                     -2.4%
Classroom Teachers-Sec 144.7                   137.4                   144.7                   7.3                       5.3%
Teacher Assistants 147.5                   140.5                   136.5                   7.0                       5.0%
Early Childhood Educators 21.0                     22.0                     24.0                     (1.0)                     -4.5%
Prof/Para-prof/Technicians 38.3                     37.3                     40.3                     1.0                       2.7%
LibTechs&Guidance Tchrs 22.6                     21.7                     20.0                     0.9                       4.1%
Principals&VP-Admin time 28.0                     26.0                     30.0                     2.0                       7.7%
School Admin Assistants 35.5                     35.5                     36.0                     -                         0.0%
Coordinators-Tchrs&P/VP 19.3                     18.8                     13.8                     0.5                       2.7%
Custodial/Maint-Schools 82.3                     81.4                     81.3                     0.9                       1.1%
Facilities - Mgmt, Clerical 2.0                       2.0                       2.0                       -                         0.0%
Transp'n-Mgmt & Tech 4.0                       4.0                       4.0                       -                         0.0%
Admin-Director/SO's 5.0                       5.0                       5.0                       -                         0.0%
Director's Office 5.0                       3.0                       3.0                       2.0                       66.7%
Finance 5.5                       5.5                       5.5                       -                         0.0%
Capital Planning Capacity 2.0                       1.0                       1.0                       1.0                       100.0%
Procurement 1.5                       1.5                       1.5                       -                         0.0%
Human Resource Admin 5.5                       4.5                       4.5                       1.0                       22.2%
Payroll Administration 4.0                       4.0                       4.0                       -                         0.0%
Information Tech 1.0                       1.0                       1.0                       -                         0.0%
Other Support Staff 1.0                       1.0                       1.0                       -                         0.0%
Other (BU Reps; Secondments; DTC) 6.3                       6.3                       3.0                       -                         0.0%
Trustees 13.0                     13.0                     13.0                     -                         0.0%
Total 805.7                   788.3                   800.3                   17.4                     2.2%



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
2022-23 DRAFT Estimates 

June 14, 2022 
Page 9 

 
Table 9 
Budget Risks and Mitigation Strategies 

Description of risk element 

Probability 
of Risk 

Occurring Mitigation strategies employed 
Actual enrolment is less than projected, 
causing reduction in grant or tuition 
revenues. Moderate 

- conservative estimates used in budget 
- staff cannot be decreased once hired. 
This could put pressure if the enrolment is 
less than projected. 

Unexpected cost pressures (e.g., utility 
rates, salary settlements, benefit costs) 
cause expenses to exceed budget Moderate 

- access Reserves 
- Reallocate budget lines in-year to cover 
unexpected costs 
- Ministry recognition of in-year costs 

Expense items overlooked in budget 
preparation Low 

- budgets are developed by those 
responsible for the activity and subject to 
multiple reviews 

Interest rates higher or lower than projected 

Moderate 

- long term liabilities financed at fixed 
rates 
- somewhat conservative estimates for 
both investments and short-term 
borrowing 

Staff responsible for budget centres 
overspend the approved budget Moderate 

- monthly variance reports are provided to 
the staff and Finance monitors all budgets 
on a regular basis 

Catastrophic events requiring substantial 
funds to address (e.g., property damage 
due to fire or weather) 

Low 
- insurance is carried for all major types of 
losses (property, liability, crime, auto, 
cyber, etc.) 

Capital project costs exceed budget 
projections 

Moderate 

- capital projects are tendered to ensure 
competitive, fixed price 
- change orders require approval in 
accordance with authorization limits 
- redesign and/or retender as needed 
- highly regulated by Ministry of Education 

Ministry fails to provide funding to support 
the programs and activities it mandates Moderate 

- lobbying efforts directly and through 
OPSBA to ensure provincial 
accountability 

Revenues prove to be uncollectable (e.g., 
tuition fees and rent) 

Low 

- allowance made for doubtful accounts in 
prior year financial statements 
- collection efforts focused on large 
accounts 

 
Catastrophic events would include the collapse of the roof of a school. In that type of 
circumstance, our OSBIE insurance has a deductible of $25,000 per occurrence. 



 

 
Policy Section:  Facilities and Equipment 
 
Policy Name: Joint School Capital Projects 

 
800 

 

806 
Board June 

14, 2022 
 

 
Cross Reference 
Policy  
603, Donations  
  

Date Adopted: 08/06/1999 
Dates Reviewed: 18/03/2003; 07/03/2006; 

08/06/2010; 11/02/2014; 08/11/2016; 
17/05/2022 

 
Review By: 20206  

Page 1 of 2 
 

Policy Statement 
 
 
It is the policy of the Keewatin-Patricia District School Board (KPDSB) to in participate the 
development of Joint School Capital Projects with partners such as School Councils, 
municipalities, other educational institutions, associations, and businesses.  Some examples of 
Joint School Capital Projects include outdoor sports facilities, playground equipment, outdoor 
classrooms, community kitchens, and classroom retrofitting and equipping.  
 
KPDSB participation will occur through:  
 

 The promotion of the community use-partnerships aspects of these projects;  
 Limited financial contributions to projects; and  
 Providing technical assistance to groups through the facilities staff of the KPDSB.  

 
Safety of users of school buildings, grounds, and equipment is paramount.  All new facilities and 
equipment will be installed to current building codes, Canadian Standards Association (CSA), and 
other applicable technical standards.  
 
Rationale 
 
 

1. Contributions from partners will permit the KPDSB to provide facilities and equipment it 
could not otherwise afford on its own.  
 

2. Involving partners in the development of Joint School Capital Projects helps build support 
for KPDSB schools, while providing an opportunity for partners to demonstrate their 
commitment to public education.  
 

3. Students’ physical and mental health will be improved through the use of facilities and 
equipment provided by these projects.  
 

4. The community will benefit from the availability of higher quality community-use facilities.  
 



 

 
Policy Section:  Facilities and Equipment 
 
Policy Name: Joint School Capital Projects 

 
800 

 

806 
Board June 

14, 2022 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Guidelines 
 
 

1. To ensure safety and regulatory standards are met:  
 
 All projects must have development plans approved by the KPDSB; and  
 All equipment must be approved by the KPDSB prior to purchase.  

 
2. All equipment will be inspected and maintained by KPDSB facility personnel.  

 
3. The KPDSB’s financial contribution to projects will be determined by the Director of 

Education, taking into account the following:  
 
 Funds available in the operating and/or capital budget(s);  
 The projected amount of partner contributions; and  
 The capacity of the local community to raise funds for the project.  

 
4. Equipment, once purchased, becomes the property of the Keewatin-Patricia District School 

Board.  
 

5. Joint School Capital Project proposals may be submitted to the Director of Education, or 
Designate, by schools or partner organizations at any time during the school year to allow 
for future school year project planning.   Proposals must include:  
 
 A full description of the proposed project; 
 A cost estimate for each element of the project;  
 The proposed timeline for the project;  
 The proposed source(s) of funding including partner contributions and the expected 

contributions from school and KPDSB funds; and  
 Letters of endorsement from the School Council Chair and the school Principal.  

 
The Director of Education, or Designate, will conduct a cost-benefit analysis of all project 
proposals in consultation with the school community and KPDSB staff.  The timing of the 
cost-benefit analyses will be dependent on the availability of staff resources.  
 

6. Final authority for approving Joint School Capital Projects and the timelines for their 
completion shall rest with the Director of Education.  



 

 
Regular Board Meeting 

      June 14, 2022  

 
 

Respectfully submitted by, 
Sherri-Lynne Pharand, Director of Education 

 
The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning. 

 

EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION REPORT 
2021-2022  

RETIREMENTS   

Name Position Location Date 

Bullock, Jocelyn 
Human Resources 
Manager Dryden Board Office 

June 30, 2022 

Derouard, Michelle Administrative Assistant Beaver Brae Secondary School 
May 31, 2022 

Devins, Conrad Trades Maintenance  Beaver Brae Secondary School 
September 30, 2021 

Dexter, Robin Secondary Teacher Beaver Brae Secondary School 
January 27, 2022 

Farrell, Laura Elementary Teacher King George Public School 
June 30, 2022 

Fejos, Sandor Secondary Teacher Dryden High School 
August 31, 2022 

Griffiths, Kelly Secondary Teacher Dryden High School 
June 30, 2022 

Hildebrand, Lance Secondary Teacher Sioux North High School 
January 31, 2022 

Hodgkinson, Richard Principal Dryden High School 
June 30, 2022 

Hofteig, Brenda Education Assistant Ear Falls Public School 
June 30, 2022 

Iverson, Deneen Elementary Teacher Evergreen Public School 
December 31, 2021 

Lambert, Theresa Elementary Teacher New Prospect School 
June 30, 2022 



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
June 14, 2022 

 

Respectfully submitted by, 
Sherri-Lynne Pharand, Director of Education 

 
The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning. 

 

RETIREMENTS   

Leutschaft, Susan Education Assistant Open Roads Public School 
June 30, 2022 

MacRae, John Secondary Teacher Sioux North High School  
June 30, 2022 

Magel, Betty Ann Head Custodian Red Lake District High School 
September 27, 2021 

McDonald, Ann Central Vice Principal Kenora Board Office 
June 30, 2022 

McDonald, Jason Central Principal Kenora Board Office 
June 30, 2022 

Mutch, Heather Principal Keewatin Public School 
June 30, 2022 

O’Hearn, Rosemary Elementary Teacher Evergreen Public School 
June 30, 2022 

Pacheco, Deanna Central Principal Dryden Board Office 
August 30, 2022 

Reid, Maureen Elementary Teacher Golden Learning Centre PS 
October 31, 2021 

Salinas, Laura Elementary Teacher  Open Roads Public School 
June 30, 2022 

Smit-Fisher, Wendy  Human Resources Officer Dryden Board Office 
May 31, 2022 

Southwell, Pamela Secondary Teacher Sioux North High School 
June 30, 2021 

Stemkens, Jennifer Elementary Teacher New Prospect Public School 
June 30, 2022 

Tinney, Evelyn Education Assistant Sioux Mountain Public School 
June 30, 2022 

Urquhart, Michelle Elementary Teacher Open Roads Public School 
June 30, 2022 

Wild, Kathleen Elementary Teacher Evergreen Public School 
June 30, 2022 

Wlasiuk, Heather Education Assistant King George Public School 
January 27, 2022 



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
June 14, 2022 

 

Respectfully submitted by, 
Sherri-Lynne Pharand, Director of Education 

 
The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning. 

 

 

Acknowledgement of 25 Years of Service 

 

Name 

 

Position Location 

Barber, Holly Secondary Teacher Beaver Brae Secondary School 

Belrose, Trevor Secondary Teacher Beaver Brae Secondary School 

Benoit, Tracey Principal Beaver Brae Secondary School 

Boucha, Patricia Elementary Teacher Evergreen Public School 

Degagne, Helle Casual Education Assistant Kenora Area Schools 

Desautels, Todd Secondary Teacher Dryden High School 

Devlin, Lorelei Library Assistant Keewatin & Evergreen Public School 

Dexter, Robin Secondary Teacher Beaver Brae Secondary School 

Dumas, Lawrence Education Assistant Sioux North High School 

Fejos, Sandor Secondary Teacher Dryden High School 

Hayward, Cindy Education Assistant Beaver Brae Secondary School 

Hintz, Deana Elementary Teacher Valleyview Public School 

Hird, Marlene Occasional Teacher Kenora Area Schools 

Holmstrom, Candice Elementary Teacher Evergreen Public School 

Hopkins, Chris Secondary Teacher Beaver Brae Secondary School 

Johnson, Mark Learning Systems Technician Dryden Board Office 

Kudlacek, Karen Elementary Teacher Open Roads Public School 

Kuemper, Jana Elementary Teacher King George Public School 

Lalonde, Michael Secondary Teacher Dryden High School 



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
June 14, 2022 

 

Respectfully submitted by, 
Sherri-Lynne Pharand, Director of Education 

 
The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MacDonald, Sylvie Occasional Teacher Sioux Lookout Area Schools 

Mackie, Shelley Secondary Teacher Dryden High School 

MacNaughton, Christopher Secondary Teacher Beaver Brae Secondary School 

McAughey, Lynn Occasional Teacher Kenora Area Schools 

McCoy, Susan Elementary Teacher Beaver Brae Secondary School 

Nummelin, Alice Secondary Teacher Red Lake District High School 

Parker, Shawn Education Assistant Keewatin Public School 

Penner, Chris Secondary Teacher Beaver Brae Secondary School 

Poje, Janice Custodian Golden Learning Centre Public School 

Polson, Peggy Education Assistant Golden Learning Centre Public School 

Tella, Antonio Elementary Teacher King George Public School 

Tobin, William Casual Custodian Sioux Lookout Area Schools 

Ulisse-Caren, Joanna Secondary Teacher Dryden High School 

Vandusen, Phyllis Library Technician Red Lake District High School 

Wagenaar, Nancy Secondary Teacher Beaver Brae Secondary School 

Zillinski, Pete Secondary Teacher Beaver Brae Secondary School 



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
June 14, 2022 

 

Respectfully submitted by, 
Sherri-Lynne Pharand, Director of Education 

 
The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning. 

 

 

Acknowledgement of 15 Years of Service 

 

Name 

 

Position Location 

Bruce, Ashley Elementary Teacher Evergreen Public School 

Cain, Mirelle Elementary Teacher Beaver Brae Senior Elementary School 

Campbell, Trina Secondary Teacher Sioux North High School 

Carlucci, John Event Services Coordinator Dryden Regional Training Cultural Centre 

Coady, Denise Elementary Teacher Ignace Public School 

Cosco, Sara Elementary Teacher Sioux Mountain Public School 

Desserre, Randahl Education Assistant Dryden High School 

Durocher, Lisa Secondary Teacher Dryden High School 

Fellowes, Alvina Education Assistant Crolancia Public School 

Fournier, Dale Custodian Dryden High School 

Gardner, Len Indigenous Lead Dryden Board Office 

Gray, Delphus Custodian Upsala School 

Greene, Brendan Secondary Teacher Sioux North High School 

Harrison, Jennifer Elementary Teacher Ear Falls Public School 

Hillier, Colin Learning Systems Technician  Dryden Board Office 

Jeswiet, Jacob Elementary Teacher Keewatin Public School 

Jones, Colleen Purchasing Clerk Kenora Board Office 

Milne, Jodi Casual Admin Assistant  Kenora Area Schools 

Olsen-Thompson, Irene Custodian Red Lake District High School 



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
June 14, 2022 

 

Respectfully submitted by, 
Sherri-Lynne Pharand, Director of Education 

 
The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning. 

 

 
 

Penner, Tracy Secondary Head Admin Assistant  Dryden High School 

Pitchenese, Phyllis Elementary Teacher Open Roads Public School 

Sakamoto, Kate Elementary Teacher Open Roads Public School 

Skead, Eleanor Secondary Teacher Beaver Brae Secondary School 



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
June 14, 2022 

 

Respectfully submitted by, 
Sherri-Lynne Pharand, Director of Education 

 
The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning. 

 

 

Acknowledgement of 5 Years of Service 

 

Name 

 

Position Location 

Amell, Sydney Occasional Teacher Red Lake Area Schools 

Anderson, Emily Early Childhood Educator Golden Learning Centre Public School 

Ankney, Mikaela Occasional Teacher Open Roads Public School 

Appleby, Kathleen Occasional Teacher Kenora Area Schools 

Byrne, Shelia  Casual Education Assistant Crolancia Public School 

Cadger, Kristal Secondary Alternative Program Admin Assistant Kenora Board Office 

Caldwell, Kimberly Secondary Teacher Sioux North High School 

Coombs, Amanda Elementary Teacher Ear Falls Public School 

Dalzell, Senia Occasional Teacher Crolancia Public School 

Doner, Jordan Secondary Teacher Beaver Brae Secondary School 

Dumontet, Julie Education Assistant King George Public School 

Elliott, Krista Elementary Teacher Valleyview Public School 

Fediuk, Renee Casual Admin Assistant Dryden Area Schools 

Gallik, Mercedes Education Assistant Valleyview Public School 

Goushleff, Katrina Early Childhood Educator Ear Falls Public School 

Gow, Ali Speech Language Pathologist Kenora Board Office 

Gunderson, Natasha Occasional Teacher Kenora Area Schools 

Hager, Samantha Accounting Technician  Kenora Board Office 

Halverson, Robert Custodian Red Lake Madsen Public School 



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
June 14, 2022 

 

Respectfully submitted by, 
Sherri-Lynne Pharand, Director of Education 

 
The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning. 

 

Houlden, Carli Education Assistant Valleyview Public School 

Jidkine, Emily Secondary Teacher Red Lake District High School 

Kacan, Charity Education Assistant Red Lake District High School 

Keating, Jennifer Education Assistant Lillian Berg Public School 

Kirouac, Alyssa Secondary Teacher Dryden High School 

Kovac, Sandra Elementary Administrative Assistant Upsala Public School 

LaFreniere, Jill Executive Assistant Dryden Board Office 

Langevin, Melinda Elementary Teacher Ear Falls Public School 

Lawrance, Shannon FNMI Graduation Coach Sioux North High School 

Letkeman, Jennifer Education Assistant Dryden High School 

Lira, Lisa Accounts Payable Clerk Kenora Board Office 

Longe, Allison Occasional Teacher Kenora Area Schools 

Lozenski, David Occasional Teacher Kenora Area Schools 

MacGillivray, Katelyn Elementary Teacher Open Roads Public School 

Marchand, Delaney Occasional Teacher Kenora Area Schools 

Marsh, Jacquelynn Education Assistant Keewatin Public School 

McDonald, Shelly Event Services Dryden Region Training Cultural Centre 

McLean, Kathleen Student Nutrition Program Provider Golden Learning Centre Public School 

McNeish, Connie Occasional Teacher Kenora Area Schools 

Meier, Leigh-Ann Education Assistant Beaver Brae Secondary School 

Moncrief, Tessa Long-term Occasional Teacher Evergreen Public School 

Neniska, Stacy Accounts Receivable Clerk   Kenora Board Office 

Novak, Deborah Elementary Head Administrative Assistant Valleyview Public School 



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
June 14, 2022 

 

Respectfully submitted by, 
Sherri-Lynne Pharand, Director of Education 

 
The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning. 

 

 

Olson, Sheryl Lunch Hour Supervisor Kenora Area Schools 

Perreault, Christine Education Assistant Sioux Mountain Public School 

Phillips, Meghan Education Assistant New Prospect Public School 

Piche, Tenaya Casual Education Assistant Kenora Area Schools 

Prager, Alicia Elementary Teacher Ignace Public School 

Prager, Johann Elementary Teacher Ignace Public School 

Puls, Ainslie Elementary Administrative Assistant Valleyview Public School 

Raine, Kevin Occasional Teacher Dryden Area Schools 

Rice, Alyssa Occasional Teacher Sioux Lookout Area Schools 

Ricklefs, Jamie Occasional Teacher Kenora Area Schools 

Rottler, Tracy Casual Education Assistant Dryden Area Schools 

Slowe, Savannah Education Assistant King George Public School 

Stasiuk, Shauna Elementary Teacher King George Public School 

Suprovich, Sheila Secondary Head Administrative Assistant Sioux North High School 

Thurston, Mathew Education Assistant Keewatin Public School 

Tucker, Chantelle Occasional Teacher Ignace Public School 

Werstler, Nicholas Casual Education Assistant Dryden Area Schools 

Whitney, Ronald Trades Maintenance Sioux North High School 

Wiebe, Robyn Casual Education Assistant Kenora Area Schools 

Wilcox, Melissa Occasional Teacher Kenora Area schools 

Woods, Amanda Education Assistant Ignace Public School 



 

 
Policy Section:  Facilities and Equipment 
 
Policy Name: Naming of Educational Facilities 

 
800 

 

805 
Board June 

14, 2022 
 

 
Cross Reference 
 

Date Adopted: 13/04/1999; 
Dates Reviewed: 06/2004; 08/04/2008; 

12/01/2010; 08/11/2016; 18/05/2022  
Dates Revised: 11/02/2014 

 
Review By: 2026  

Page 1 of 2 
 

Policy Statement 
 
 
It is the policy of the Keewatin-Patricia District School Board (KPDSB) that KPDSB-owned 
facilities be named and that the naming of the facilities shall be the sole responsibility of the 
KPDSB.  
 
Rationale 
 
 
The naming of special areas within schools, Board office building(s), and other KPDSB-owned 
facilities provide an opportunity to recognize contributions to education of individuals associated 
with this jurisdiction, contributions of individuals to Canadian and/or international society, and/or 
geographical features the Keewatin-Patricia District School Board’s jurisdiction.  
 
Guidelines 
 
 

1. Anyone may submit a name relative to a KPDSB facility or special area within a facility to 
the Keewatin-Patricia District School Board, care of the Director of Education, or 
Designate.  
 

2. The submission of a name should be accompanied by a written presentation outlining the 
merits of the recommendation.  
 

3. When names are to be selected for a facility or other facilities, the Board Chair shall, with 
the approval of the KPDSB, establish a committee.  The Committee should be composed 
of:  
 
 Director of Education, or Designate; 
 One (1) representative from the staff of the facility, where appropriate; 
 One (1) representative from the student body of the facility, where appropriate; 
 Two (2) Trustees; 
 Two (2) members of the community; and  
 One (1) representative from the School Council of the facility, where appropriate. 



 

 
Policy Section:  Facilities and Equipment 
 
Policy Name: Naming of Educational Facilities 

 
800 

 

805 
Board June 

14, 2022 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

4. The name of the facility may be chosen from one (1) of the following areas:  
 
 The street on which the facility is located;  
 The area which the facility serves;  
 A historical name that once applied to the area;  
 The name of a person recognized as one who made a significant contribution to the 

community and/or to Canadian or international society;  
 Special geographical features in the KPDSB jurisdiction; or  
 An individual associated with the system whose contributions have been unique to 

the school(s) and/or system.  
 

5. The Director of Education, or Designate, shall from time to time, by appropriate means, 
inform the staff and general public that they may submit names for consideration.  
 

6. The final decision in each case, with respect to the naming of a facility, shall rest with the 
KPDSB.  
 

7. Once the KPDSB has made a determination relative to the naming of the facility, the 
Director of Education, or Designate, shall facilitate a proper occasion for the designation of 
the name.  



 

 
Policy Section:  Facilities and Equipment 
 
Policy Name: Community Planning and 
                      Partnerships 

 
800 

 

807 
Board June 

14, 2022 

 

 
Cross Reference 
Ontario Reg: 444/98 
Ministry of Education Community Planning and Partnerships Guideline, March 2015 
Policy  
802, School Viability and Closure   

Date Adopted: 08/06/1999 
Dates Reviewed: 09/06/2015 

Dates Revised: 17/05/2022 
 

Review By: 2019 2026  
Page 1 of 2 
 

Policy Statement 
 
 
It is the policy of the Keewatin-Patricia District School Board (KPDSB) to work with its community 
partners in order to share its facilities to the benefit of the KPDSB, its students, and the 
community, and to optimize the use of the assets owned by the KPDSB.  The KPDSB will seek 
opportunities to share facilities with community partners when building new schools and/or 
undertaking significant renovations, and when considering the use of unoccupied space in 
schools.  The KPDSB will attempt to expand the number of partnerships in a way that is 
transparent, sustainable, and supportive of student achievement.  
 
Rationale 
 
 
Cooperative and collaborative partnerships are part of the foundation of a strong, vibrant, and 
sustainable publicly funded education system.  Offering space in schools to partners can 
strengthen the role of schools in communities, reduce facility operating costs for the KPDSB, 
provide a place for programs and facilitate the coordination of, and improve access to, services 
for students and the wider community, as well as provide transitional school-to-work experiences 
for students.  
 
Guidelines  
 
 

1. Authority for entering into facility partnerships on behalf of the KPDSB is delegated to the 
Director of Education or Designate.  
 

2. All facility partnerships shall meet the following requirements:  
 
 Health and safety of students must be protected;  
 Partnerships must be appropriate for the school setting;  
 Partnerships must not compromise the KPDSB’s student achievement strategy; 

and  
 Entities that provide competing education services such as tutoring services, JK-

12 private schools or private colleges, and credit offering entities that are not 
government funded, are not eligible partners.  
 

3. A notification list of potential partners will be maintained by the Director of Education, or  



 

 
Policy Section:  Facilities and Equipment 
 
Policy Name: Community Planning and 
                      Partnerships 

 
800 

 

807 
Board June 

14, 2022 

 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Designate, consisting, at a minimum, of the applicable entities listed in Ontario Regulation 
44/98, and will specifically include:  
 

 All municipalities within the geographic boundaries of the KPDSB;  
 The Kenora District Services Board; and  
 All Public Health Boards, Local Health Integration Networks, and Children’s Mental 

Health Centres within the geographic boundaries of the KPDSB; and  
 Other appropriate entities or public institutions deemed beneficial to student 

learning and experiences..  
 

If childcare operators and government-funded agencies request it, they will be added to the 
notification list.  Other eligible agencies may be added to the notification list by the Director 
of Education or Designate.  
 

4. Information on space available to partners will be posted on the KPDSB’s website and the 
information will be updated on an annual, or more frequent, basis.  Entities on the 
notification list will be notified when information is updated.  
 

5. A public meeting will be held once per year in a community of the KPDSB to discuss 
potential facility partnerships and to receive information on the needs of the communities 
within the KPDSB.  Details on the time and location of the meeting will be provided to the 
entities on the notification list and posted on the KPDSB website at least thirty (30) days in 
advance of the meeting.  
 

6. When the KPDSB is considering building a new school or undertaking a significant addition 
or renovation, it will notify the entities on the notification list one (1) to three (3) years prior 
to the potential construction start date.  The KPDSB will provide as much information as 
possible about its plan and the site to support potential partners in determining the project’s 
sustainability for their purposes.  
 

7. The rent and/or fees charged to partners should cover the operations and capital cost, 
including administrative costs and property taxes (if applicable), to the KPDSB of the space 
occupied by the partner.  Additional costs to perform minor renovations to protect student 
safety, provide appropriate washrooms, and otherwise make the space suitable for use by 
facility partners, should be borne by the partners.  
 

8. Notwithstanding the above, where suitable partners cannot be found or where the KPDSB 
considers it to be in the best interest, surplus space may be sold or leased in accordance 
with Ontario Regulation 444/98 as amended.  KPDSB Policy 802 – School Viability and 
Closure governs the study of schools for potential closure.  
 

9. Any requirements contained in the Ministry of Education Community Planning and 
Partnership Guideline (March 2015) as amended, that are not contained in this policy shall 
also be adhered to, and where there is any discrepancy between the provisions of this 
policy and that of the Guideline aforementioned, the provisions of the Guideline shall 
prevail.  



 Committee of the Whole Meeting 
June 14, 2022 

 
 

 
The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning. 

 
 

 
Record Information Management (RIM) System 

Update 

 
Background 
 
Keewatin-Patricia District School Board (KPDSB) is responsible for the records and information 
in its custody and control.  After reviewing the practices of many Boards throughout Ontario, a 
Records Information Management (RIM) system has been developed to meet the needs of 
KPDSB. 
 
This system will enable KPDSB to look after all records properly and in a cost-effective manner.  
It will also provide access to records in a timely manner, in accordance with legislation.   
A Record Information Management System authorizes the destruction of records once they are 
no longer required for administrative, legal, or financial purposes.  It also identifies records of 
enduring value and ensures that they are protected while in operational use and transferred to 
an archival facility as soon as feasible.  Responsibility for ensuring that the policy and 
procedures associated with a RIM system are carried out should be the assigned task of the 
Director of Education or designate.  The widespread use of electronic information systems has 
made the application of systematic controls and protective measures even more critical to the 
survival and accessibility of information. 
 
A Record Information Management System should: 
 
1)  assign responsibility for records management to a senior official;  
2) clearly state policies and procedures to control access and disclosure, protection, and   

disposition of all records in the custody or under the control of the Board;  
3)  comply with all statutory and regulatory records management obligations;  
4)  include a Records Retention and Disposition Schedule for all records of the Board;  
5)  designate an archive location for the permanent records of the Board; and 
6)  be adopted by the KPDS Board of Trustees by means of a formal resolution. 
 
To Date 
 
To date, KPDSB staff have created a Records and Information Management (RIM) Retention 
and Disposition Schedule (developed from practices of the above-mentioned many Boards’ 
current procedures) and have since tailored and refined the schedule to meet the needs of the 
Keewatin-Patricia District School Board.  The KPDSB RIM Retention and Disposition Schedule 
is a living document broken down into twelve (12) areas of function, each of which is further 
broken down by record series:  
 
 



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
Record Information Management System  

June 14, 2022 

 

 

1. Administrative Management (ADM) 
2. Communications and Public Relations (COM) 
3. Facilities Management (FAC) 
4. Finance and Accounting (FIN) 
5. Governance and Policy (GOV) 
6. Human Resources (HUM) 
7. Information and Computer Technology (ICT) 
8. Legal (LEG) 
9. Program Design and Development (PPD) 
10. Research and Planning (RPL) 
11. Programs and Services in the Community (PSC) 
12. Student Services (STU) 

 
This has allowed staff and departments to take a good look at their current records 
management and allow for fulsome discussion on what has been historically organized 
appropriately and what areas require improvement.  This process has established ‘Responsible 
Sites’ for records, i.e., who is the responsible department/position for maintaining records for 
the purposes of this system.  This will create more efficient access to information, eliminating 
the possibility for multiple copies of items to be stored/maintained amongst different 
departments within KPDSB; reducing overlap, confusion, and redundant copies of documents.   

The RIM Retention and Disposition Schedule contains the minimum retention periods for 
various documents.  Administration will modify those time limits from time to time as required by 
Federal and Provincial legislation and regulations.  A Record Destruction Log has been drafted; 
this will allow an admissible record of items that have been destroyed once their retention 
period is up.  
 
Departmental Organizational Charts have been developed and focus on the position title and 
description of role rather than staff names.  This will allow for clarity in who maintains which 
records in the event of staff changeover.  The goal of this is that if there is staff change over the 
position itself will still manage the retention and maintenance of specific records assigned to it, 
allowing for a continuity of, and access to, information when long-term staff leave the 
organization, taking years of corporate knowledge with them.    
 
Drafts of what the Record Information Management System will look like in reality are underway 
now that the Retention Schedule has been refined to suit KPDSB.   
 
Goals - To Do 
 
Implementation of the KPDSB Record Information Management System.  As stated above, 
KPDSB staff have begun mapping out what this system will look like in a functional capacity.  
As this is a large-scale project it will need to be implemented one department at a time, starting 
with Board Offices and Administrative departments before moving on to schools.  Implementing 
this strategically one department at a time will allow for the safeguarding of records, until such a 
time that the system is operating seamlessly, avoiding any unnecessary record mishandling or 
inadvertent record destruction.  
 
 



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
Record Information Management System  

June 14, 2022 

 

 
Implementation of KPDSB Record Information Management System Policy and Procedures.  
KPDSB staff have drafted the procedures for this system.  The policy and procedures on this 
project will evolve as the implementation of the RIM System unfolds and develops, and as such, 
these drafts are not ready to be published.  
 
Digitalization and/or reformatting of archived records, including the destruction of unnecessary 
archived records. Once the RIM System has been realized, adjusted for functionality, and has 
been working well under administrative departments, it will be brought to the school level.   At 
that time, addressing KPDSB archived files can begin. This will be a significant part of this 
project and one that comes with a lot of hesitation.  There is always the fear that once 
something has been destroyed it will be needed.  In recognition of this, a Destruction Log will be 
instituted as part of this process, and as stated above, this will allow for an admissible record of 
records destroyed.   

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Respectfully submitted by: 
Danica Farion  

Executive Assistant, KPDSB 



 

 
 
 

 
 

Suspension Report 

BOARD Meeting 
June 14, 2022 

 
 

There has been a significant decline in suspensions in 2021-2022 compared to the 2018-2019 
school year. Suspensions have dropped by fifty (50%) percent. In the 2018-2019 school year, 
there were 250 suspensions (from September to May), in the 2019-2020 school year there were 
206 suspensions (from September to June), and in the 2020-21 school year there were 61 
suspensions (from September to June). In the 2021-2022 school year, there were 124 
suspensions (from September to May). 

 
In 2021-2022, the most common reason for suspension is conduct injurious to the moral tone of 
the school or the physical or mental well-being of others in the school. There were 38 suspensions 
in grades 5-8 and 86 suspensions in grades 9-12. There were zero (0) suspensions in junior 
kindergarten to grade 4. 

 
When considering a suspension, a principal must complete an investigation and consider 
mitigating factors and other factors. 

 
There have been new regulations that change how students in grades junior kindergarten to grade 
3 behaviour is addressed. The new regulations remove the discretion of the principal to suspend 
students in junior kindergarten to grade 3 for activities listed in subsection 306(1) of the Education 
Act. These behaviours should be addressed using appropriate positive behaviour supports. 
Students in junior kindergarten to grade 3 may only be suspended for activities listed in subsection 
310(1) of the Education Act pending the results of an investigation. 

 
A positive school climate ensures that all members of the community, including students, staff, 
and parents, feel welcomed, safe, and respected. Promoting healthy relationships and 
contributing to a positive school climate helps to encourage positive student behaviour. A 
progressive discipline approach is used in schools to address inappropriate student behaviour 
and includes early and ongoing interventions and supports to promote positive student behaviour. 
Schools use a range of options to determine the most appropriate way to respond to inappropriate 
student behaviour and consider each individual circumstance. In some cases, suspension or 
expulsion may be necessary. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Respectfully submitted by:  
Jennifer Gray, Safe and Supportive Schools Administrator 

Chantal Moore, Superintendent of Education 
 

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning. 



All stakeholders create a culture of learning so that students come first.The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.
The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.



All stakeholders create a culture of learning so that students come first.The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

Suspension Data

Respectfully submitted by

Jennifer Gray Safe and Supportive Schools Administrator 

Chantal Moore, Superintendent of Education

Regular Board Meeting 

June 14, 2022



All stakeholders create a culture of learning so that students come first.The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

Suspension Data as of 
June 1, 2022

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.



All stakeholders create a culture of learning so that students come first.The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

Suspensions All Grades
All Students

2018-2019 
(Sept-May)

250

2019-2020 
(Sept-June)

206

2020-2021 
(Sept-June)

61

2021-2022 
(Sept-May)

124



All stakeholders create a culture of learning so that students come first.The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

Number of Suspensions by Panel



All stakeholders create a culture of learning so that students come first.The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

Suspension Data

• Total of 95 students suspended

• 325 days suspended

• Average of 3 days per student

• Conduct injurious to the moral tone of the 
school or to the physical or mental-well being 
of others in the school was the number one 
reason for suspension 



All stakeholders create a culture of learning so that students come first.The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.




